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UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-K

M ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

Commission file number 1-11607

DTE ENERGY COMPANY

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its cagrt

Michigan 38-3217752
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.LR.S. Employer
incorporation or organization Identification No.)
One Energy Plaza, Detroit, Michigan 4822¢-1279
(Address of principal executive office (Zip Code)

313-235-4000

(Registrant’s telephone number, including area gode
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) dfie Act:

Title of Each Clas: Name of Each Exchange on Which Register:
Common Stock, without par vall New York Stock Exchang
7.8% Trust Preferred Securitie New York Stock Exchang
7.50% Trust Originated Preferred Securitie New York Stock Exchang

* |ssued by DTE Energy Trust I. DTE Energy fullydannconditionally guarantees the payments of athams due on these
securities to the extent DTE Energy Trust | hagifuavailable for payment of such distributic

** |ssued by DTE Energy Trust Il. DTE Energy fully amaconditionally guarantees the payments of allamsdue on these
securities to the extent DTE Energy Trust Il hasduavailable for payment of such distributic

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) ¢fie Act: None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405edB#turities Act. Ye¥
No O

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®ecl5(d) of the Act. Yes
O No M

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant: hés filed all reports required to be filed by $@ectl3 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preagdia months (or for such shorter period that tlygsteant was required to file
such reports), and (2) has been subject to sunlg fiequirements for the past 90 days. Yés No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant ldsmtted electronically and posted on its corpo¥&eb site, if any, every
Interactive Data File required to be submitted pasted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T @4&% of this chapter)
during the preceding 12 months (or such shorteog@ehat the registrant was required to submitjpost such files). YeM

No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquidlets pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K i$ contained herein, and
will not be contained, to the best of the regisfsknowledge, in definitive proxy or informatiotasements incorporated by
reference in Part IIl of this Form 10-K or any ameent to this Form 10-K4

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlarge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a-accelerated filer, or a
smaller reporting company. See the definitionslafde accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” araialler reporting company” in
Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated fileM Accelerated filerdd Non-accelerated filed Smaller reporting company
(Do not check if a smaller reporting compa O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantshell company (as defined Rule 121-2 of the Exchange Act). YeO
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On June 30, 2009, the aggregate market value ddlgéstrant’s voting and non-voting common equigydrby non-affiliates

was approximately $5.3 billion (based on the NewkY®tock Exchange closing price on such date). dlare
165,633,622 shares of common stock outstandingrataiy 31, 2010.

Certain information in DTE Energy Company’s defivet Proxy Statement for its 2010 Annual MeetingCafmmon
Shareholders to be held May 6, 2010, which wilfikesl with the Securities and Exchange Commissiorspant to
Regulation 14A, not later than 120 days after the @ the Registrant’s fiscal year covered by thort on Form 10-K, is
incorporated herein by reference to Part lll (Iteklfis11, 12, 13 and 14) of this Form 10-K.

No M
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DEFINITIONS

Accounting Standards Codificatic

Accounting Standards Upde

DTE Energy Company and any subsidiary compa

Costs to achieve, consisting of project manageneenisultant support and employee
severance, related to the Performance ExcellerameBy

Statewide initiatives giving customers in Michig#ue option to choose alternative
suppliers for electricity and ge

The Detroit Edison Company (a direct wholly ownetsidiary of DTE Energy Compan
and subsidiary compani

DTE Energy Company, directly or indirectly the paref Detroit Edison, MichCon and
numerous nc-utility subsidiaries

United States Environmental Protection Age

Financial Accounting Standards Bo:

Federal Energy Regulatory Commiss

FASB Staff Positior

Financial transmission righ

A gas cost recovery mechanism authorized by the G/th&t allows MichCon to recover
through rates its natural gas co:

ISO New England Inc. is a Regional Transmissiona@ization serving Connecticut,
Maine, Massachusetts, New Hampshire, Rhode Isladd/armont.

Michigan Department of Environmental Qual

Michigan Consolidated Gas Company (an indirect Wholvned subsidiary of DTE
Energy) and subsidiary compan

Midwest Independent System Operator is an Indeperiistem Operator and the
Regional Transmission Organization serving the MiginJnited States and Manitoba,
Canada

Michigan Public Service Commissit

An entity that is not a public utility. Its conditis of service, prices of goods and services
and other operating related matters are not direegulated by the MPSC or the FEF
Nuclear Regulatory Commissic

New York Mercantile Exchanc

PJM Interconnection LLC is a Regional Transmissiyganization serving all or parts of
Delaware, lllinois, Indiana, Kentucky, Maryland, digan, New Jersey, North Carolina,
Ohio, Pennsylvania, Tennessee, Virginia, West Yiegand the District of Columbi

Tax credits as authorized under Sections 45K anaf 4% Internal Revenue Code that are
designed to stimulate investment in and developrokalternate fuel sources. The amount
of a production tax credit can vary each year asrdeéned by the Internal Revenue
Service.

Estimated quantities of natural gas, natural gagds and crude oil which geological and
engineering data demonstrate with reasonable onertt@ be recoverable in future years
from known reserves under existing economic andaijmg conditions

A power supply cost recovery mechanism authorizethb MPSC that allows Detroit
Edison to recover through rates its fuel, -related and purchased power co

Detroit Edison financed specific stranded costewer interest rates through the sale of
rate reduction bonds by a wholly-owned special psepentity, The Detroit Edison
Securitization Funding LLC

Statement of Financial Accounting Stande
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The direct and indirect subsidiaries of DTE Ene@pympany

The fuel produced through a process involving cleaityi modifying and binding particles
of coal. Synfuels are used for power generationcaha production. Synfuel production
through December 31, 2007 generated productionredits.

Includes those oil and gas deposits that originateblare stored in coal bed, tight
sandstone and shale formatic

Billion cubic feet of ga:

Conversion metric of natural gas, the ratio of & blfcgas to 1 barrel of oi
Gigawatthour of electricit

Kilowatthour of electricity

Thousand cubic feet of g.

Million cubic feet of gas

Megawatt of electricity

Megawatthour of electricit

3
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FORWARD-L OOKING STATEMENTS

Certain information presented herein includes “famvlooking statements” within the meaning of thiv&te
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 with resp#o the financial condition, results of operas@nd business
DTE Energy. Forward-looking statements are suligoumerous assumptions, risks and uncertaintasthay
cause actual future results to be materially diffiéifrom those contemplated, projected, estimatdulidgeted.
Many factors may impact forward-looking statementsuding, but not limited to, the following:

« the length and severity of ongoing economic dedi@seilting in lower demand, customer conservatiah a
increased thefts of electricity and g

» changes in the economic and financial viabilityoaf customers, suppliers, and trading counterEaried
the continued ability of such parties to performitiobligations to the Compan

« economic climate and population growth or declméhie geographic areas where we do busit
« high levels of uncollectible accounts receival

 access to capital markets and capital market dondiand the results of other financing effortsahhéan be
affected by credit agency rating

« instability in capital markets which could impagg#ability of short and lon-term financing;
« the timing and extent of changes in interest re
« the level of borrowings

* potential for losses on investments, including eackdecommissioning and benefit plan assets anetidked
increases in future expense and contributi

« the potential for increased costs or delays in detigm of significant construction projec

« the effects of weather and other natural phenomar@perations and sales to customers, and purcfrases
suppliers;

« environmental issues, laws, regulations, and tbee@sing costs of remediation and compliance, ity
actual and potential new federal and state req@rsthat include or could include carbon and more
stringent mercury emission controls, a renewabtffgm standard, energy efficiency mandates, &cartax
or cap and trade structure and ash landfill regrat

 nuclear regulations and operations associatedrwittear facilities

 impact of electric and gas utility restructuringhtichigan, including legislative amendments and tGumer
Choice programs

» employee relations and the impact of collectivegharing agreement

« unplanned outage

» changes in the cost and availability of coal arfgeotaw materials, purchased power and natural
« volatility in the shoi-term natural gas storage markets impacting -party storage revenue

« cost reduction efforts and the maximization of plamd distribution system performan

« the effects of competitior

« the uncertainties of successful exploration ofgfeale resources and challenges in estimating gasves
with certainty;

« impact of regulation by the FERC, MPSC, NRC ana:ptpplicable governmental proceedings and
regulations, including any associated impact oa satuctures
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« changes in and application of federal, state aadl lmx laws and their interpretations, includihg tnternal
Revenue Code, regulations, rulings, court procegdamd audits

« the amount and timing of cost recovery allowed essalt of regulatory proceedings, related appeatew
legislation;

« the cost of protecting assets against, or damagéajterrorism or cyber attacl
« the availability, cost, coverage and terms of ingge and stability of insurance provide
« changes in and application of accounting standandsfinancial reporting regulatior

« changes in federal or state laws and their intésion with respect to regulation, energy policg ather
business issues; al

« binding arbitration, litigation and related appe

New factors emerge from time to time. We cannotljgtevhat factors may arise or how such factors oeayse
our results to differ materially from those contdrin any forward-looking statement. Any forward#mg
statements refer only as of the date on which steements are made. We undertake no obligatiapdate any
forward-looking statement to reflect events or einstances after the date on which such statememdde or to
reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.
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Part |

Items 1. and 2. Business and Properties
General

In 1995, DTE Energy incorporated in the State ofi\tjan. Our utility operations consist primarily Détroit
Edison and MichCon. We also have four other segsibiat are engaged in a variety of energy-relatmsihlesses.

Detroit Edison is a Michigan corporation organizied 903 and is a public utility subject to regutatiby the
MPSC and the FERC. Detroit Edison is engaged irgémeration, purchase, distribution and sale aftedity to
approximately 2.1 million customers in southeastdichigan.

MichCon is a Michigan corporation organized in 189l is a public utility subject to regulation netMPSC.
MichCon is engaged in the purchase, storage, triasgm, gathering, distribution and sale of natgesd to
approximately 1.2 million customers throughout Mgamn.

Our other segments are involved in 1) gas pipelamesstorage; 2) unconventional gas exploration,
development, and production; 3) power and indugtrigiects and coal transportation and marketimg; 4) energy
marketing and trading operations.

Our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reportd=orm 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, proxy
statements, and all amendments to such reportsvaiiable free of charge through the Investor Ratatpage of
our websitewww.dteenergy.comas soon as reasonably practicable after theffleadewith or furnished to the
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). Our pusly filed reports and statements are also availatthe
SEC’s websitewww.sec.gov

The Company’s Code of Ethics and Standards of Beha®oard of Directors’ Mission and Guidelines,dd
Committee Charters, and Categorical Standards refcRir Independence are also posted on its webgite.
information on the Company'website is not part of this or any other repat the Company files with, or furnist
to, the SEC.

Additionally, the public may read and copy any miate the Company files with the SEC at the SEGIibIR
Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Room 1580, Wgisim, D.C. 20549. The public may obtain informatbn
the operation of the Public Reference Room bymaiihe SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC also mastain
Internet site that contains reports, proxy andrimition statements, and other information regardiagers that file
electronically with the SEC atww.sec.gov

References in this Report to “we,
collectively.

us,” “our,” “@pany” or “DTE” are to DTE Energy and its subsidiar

Corporate Structure

Based on the following structure, we set stratggils, allocate resources, and evaluate perform&see
Note 24 of the Notes to Consolidated Financialestants in Item 8 of this Report for financial infation by
segment for the last three years.

Electric Utility

« The Company'’s Electric Utility segment consistdeftroit Edison, which is engaged in the generation,
purchase, distribution and sale of electricity pprximately 2.1 million residential, commercialdan
industrial customers in southeastern Michic

Gas Utility

* The Gas Utility segment consists of MichCon andz€its. MichCon is engaged in the purchase, storage,
transmission, distribution and sale of natural tgpeaspproximately 1.2 million residenti:
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commercial and industrial customers throughout hgiah. Citizens distributes natural gas in Adrian,
Michigan to approximately 17,000 custome
Non-Utility Operations
« Gas Storage and Pipelines consists of naturaligaetimes and storage business
« Unconventional Gas Production is engaged in unautiw@al gas project development and product

» Power and Industrial Projects is comprised of dukiteries and pulverized coal projects, reducedsnm
fuel and steel industry fuel-related projects, @a-snergy services, power generation and coaspanation
and marketing

« Energy Trading consists of energy marketing andingaoperations

Corporate & Otherjncludes various holding company activities, hatdstain non-utility debt and energy-
related investments.

I DTE Energy |
T

Electric Utility I I Gas Utility II Mon-utility Operations I I Corporate & Other I

—I Detroit Edison I —I MichCon I —I (ias Storage & Pipelines I

—| Unconventional Gas Production |

—| Power & Industrial Projects |

I Energy Trading I

Refer to our Management’s Discussion and Analysiseim 7 of this Report for an in-depth analysigath
segment’s financial results. A description of ebaBiness unit follows.

ELECTRIC UTILITY
Description

Our Electric Utility segment consists of Detroiti&mh. Our generating plants are regulated by nuusciedera
and state governmental agencies, including, bulimited to, the MPSC, the FERC, the NRC, the ERd the
MDEQ. Electricity is generated from our severalsibplants, a hydroelectric pumped storage pladtanuclear
plant, and is purchased from electricity generatauppliers and wholesalers. The electricity wedpoe and
purchase is sold to three major classes of customesidential, commercial and industrial, prindipthroughout
southeastern Michigan.
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Revenue by Servic

2009 2008 2007
(in Millions)
Residentia $1,82( $1,72¢  $1,73¢
Commercial 1,70z 1,75¢ 1,72¢
Industrial 73C 894 854
Other 29¢ 28¢ 384
Subtotal 4,551 4,662 4,70(
Interconnection sales(. 162 212 20C
Total Revenut $4,71¢ $4,87¢  $4,90(

(1) Represents power that is not distributed by DeEdison.

Weather, economic factors, competition and eldttrjarices affect sales levels to customers. Owaikgead an:
highest total system sales generally occur dutieghird quarter of the year, driven by air coradithg and other
cooling-related demands. Our operations are nagmtdgnt upon a limited number of customers, andog®of any
one or a few customers would not have a materiarseé effect on Detroit Edison.

Fuel Supply and Purchased Power

Our power is generated from a variety of fuels sglpplemented with purchased power. We expedtave al
adequate supply of fuel and purchased power to meatbligation to serve customers. Our generatagpbility is
heavily dependent upon the availability of coalalOs purchased from various sources in differetggaphic areas
under agreements that vary in both pricing and $elive expect to obtain the majority of our coaluiegments
through long-term contracts, with the balance tolb&ined through short-term agreements and spohpses. We
have nine long-term and nine short-term contramts ftotal purchase of approximately 28 milliongaf low-sulfur
western coal to be delivered from 2010 through 20%& also have nine long-term and two short-termtreats for
the purchase of approximately 9 million tons of Afgzhian coal to be delivered from 2010 through2@ll of
these contracts have fixed prices. We have appmairi;87% of our 2010 expected coal requirementeun
contract. Given the geographic diversity of supplg,believe we can meet our expected generatiarnresgents.
We lease a fleet of rail cars and have transportatbntracts with companies to provide rail andseéservices for
delivery of purchased coal to our generating faesi

Detroit Edison participates in the energy markeddlgh MISO. We offer our generation in the marketoday-
ahead and real-time basis and bid for power imtheket to serve our load. We are a net purchasgowér that
supplements our generation capability to meet costalemand during peak cycles.

Properties

Detroit Edison owns generating plants and facditieat are located in the State of Michigan. Sutiity all of
our property is subject to the lien of a mortgage.
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Generating plants owned and in service as of Deee®ib 2009 are as follows:

Summer Net
Location by Rated
Michigan ~ __Capability(1)
Plant Name County (MW) (%) Year in Service
Fossi-fueled Stear-Electric
Belle River(2) St. Clair 1,03¢ 9.2 1984 and 198
Conners Cree Wayne 23C 21 1951
Greenwooc St. Clair 78t 7.1 1979
Harbor Beact Huron 10z 0. 1968
Marysville St. Clair 84 0.6 1943 and 194
Monroe(3) Monroe 3,09( 27.¢ 1971, 1973 and 197
River Rouge Wayne 523 4.7 1957 and 195
St. Clair(4) St. Clair 1,36¢ 12.2 1953, 1954, 1959, 1961 and 1¢
Trenton Channe Wayne 73C 6.€ 1949 and 196
7,944 71.7
Oil or Ga«-fueled Peaking Unit Various 1,101 10.C 196€-1971, 1981 and 19¢
Nuclea-fueled Steat-Electric Fermi 2(5 Monroe 1,102 10.C 1988
Hydroelectric Pumped Storage Ludington Mason 917 8.2 1973
11,06« 100.C

(1) Summer net rated capabilities of generating planservice are based on periodic load tests andrareged
depending on operating experience, the physicalition of units, environmental control limitatioasd
customer requirements for steam, which otherwiseladvbe used for electric generatic

(2) The Belle River capability represents Detroit Ediscentitiement to 81.39% of the capacity and eperfghe
plant. See Note 8 of the Notes to the Consolidtedncial Statements in Item 8 of this Rep

(3) The Monroe power plant provided 38% of Detroit Bd’'s total 2009 power generatic
(4) Excludes one c-fueled unit (250 MW) in cold standby stat
(5) Fermi 2 has a design electrical rating (net) ob@,MW.
(6) Represents Detroit Edis’s 49% interest in Ludington with a total capabibifyl,872 MW.
See Note 8 of the Notes to the Consolidated FisdStatements in Item 8 of this Rep
Detroit Edison owns and operates 677 distributidrstations with a capacity of approximately 33,800,

kilovolt-amperes (kVA) and approximately 423,60@elitransformers with a capacity of approximately833,000
kVA.

Circuit miles of electric distribution lines owneadd in service as of December 31, 2009:

Circuit Miles
Operating VoltageKilovolts (kV) Overheac Underground
4.8 kV to 13.2 kv 28,24 13,88¢
24 kv 177 681
40 kV 2,317 363
120 kv 54 13
30,79: 14,94:




WPD-6

Table of Contents Screening Data Part 1 of 2
Page 3994 of 9808

There are numerous interconnections that allowrttegchange of electricity between Detroit Edison a
electricity providers external to our service arBaese interconnections are generally owned anchtgzeby ITC
Transmission and connect to neighboring energy eones.

Regulation

Detroit Edison’s business is subject to the reguajurisdiction of various agencies, including bot limited
to, the MPSC, the FERC and the NRC. The MPSC isstgEs's pertaining to rates, recovery of certast$o
including the costs of generating facilities angulatory assets, conditions of service, accourdimg) operating-
related matters. Detroit Edison’s MPSC-approvedsaharged to customers have historically beemgdedito
allow for the recovery of costs, plus an authorizzé of return on our investments. The FERC ragalBetroit
Edison with respect to financing authorization arftblesale electric activities. The NRC has reguiajorisdiction
over all phases of the operation, constructioenging and decommissioning of Detroit Edison’s eachlant
operations. We are subject to the requirementsharsegulatory agencies with respect to safety gtfivironment
and health.

See Notes 4, 9, 12 and 20 of the Notes to Congetidéinancial Statements in Item 8 of this Report.

Energy Assistance Programs

Energy assistance programs, funded by the fedev&rgment and the State of Michigan, remain ciitica
Detroit Edison’s ability to control its uncolleclibaccounts receivable and collections expensesoiDEdison’s
uncollectible accounts receivable expense is dyretected by the level of government-funded aasise its
qualifying customers receive. We work continuousith the State of Michigan and others to deternvitiether the
share of funding allocated to our customers isaggmtative of the number of low-income individualsur service
territory.

Strategy and Competition

We strive to be the preferred supplier of electrimmeration in southeast Michigan. We can accahphis
goal by working with our customers, communities aggulatory agencies to be a reliable, low-cospiapof
electricity. To ensure generation reliability, wentinue to invest in our generating plants, whict mwprove both
plant availability and operating efficiencies. Weoaare making capital investments in areas thee lagpositive
impact on reliability and environmental compliarveigh the goal of high customer satisfaction.

Our distribution operations focus on improving aeility, restoration time and the quality of cus&mservice.
We seek to lower our operating costs by improvipgrating efficiencies. Revenues from year to yelinvary due
to weather conditions, economic factors, regulatmgnts and other risk factors as discussed ifRtsk Factors”in
Item 1A. of this Report. We expect to minimize thmacts of declines in average customer usage ghroegulator
mechanisms which will partially decouple our revetevels from sales volumes.

The electric Customer Choice program in Michigdoves all of our electric customers to purchaserthei
electricity from alternative electric suppliersg#neration services, subject to limits. Custombosing to purcha
power from alternative electric suppliers represdrapproximately 3% of retail sales in 2009 and82@dd 4% of
such sales in 2007. Customers participating ireteetric Customer Choice program consist primasfljndustrial
and commercial customers whose MPSC-authorizedéullice rates exceed their cost of service. MRBE€arders
and recent energy legislation enacted by the &fd#ichigan are phasing out the pricing dispariteofive years
and have placed a 10% cap on the total potentisidBuer Choice related migration, mitigating soméhef
unfavorable effects of electric Customer Choiceonfinancial performance. We expect that in 20a$teamers
choosing to purchase power from alternative elestippliers will represent approximately 10% obiletales.
When market conditions are favorable, we sell pawterthe wholesale market, in order to lower costiull-
service customers.

10
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Competition in the regulated electric distributtmmsiness is primarily from the on-site generatibmdustrial
customers and from distributed generation appbeatby industrial and commercial customers. Weaterpect
significant competition for distribution to any gnw of customers in the near term.

GAS UTILITY

Description
Our Gas Utility segment consists of MichCon andz€its.

Revenue is generated by providing the followinganajasses of service: gas sales, end user traaipar
intermediate transportation, and gas storage.

Revenue by Service

2009 2008 2007
(in Millions)
Gas sale $1,44:  $1,82¢ $1,53¢
End user transportatic 144 14z 14C
Intermediate transportatic 69 73 59
Storage and othe 132 112 14C
Total Revenut $1,78¢ $2,152  $1,87¢

« Gas sales —Includes the sale and delivery of natural gas prilgnto residential and small-volume
commercial and industrial custome

« End user transportatio— Gas delivery service provided primarily to largglume commercial and industr
customers. Additionally, the service is provideddsidential customers, and small-volume commeeuidl
industrial customers who have elected to partieifimour Customer Choice program. End user tramstion
customers purchase natural gas directly from prextucr brokers and utilize our pipeline network to
transport the gas to their facilities or horr

« Intermediate transportatio— Gas delivery service provided to producers, brokesother gas companies
that own the natural gas, but are not the ultinsatessumers. Intermediate transportation customéizeubur
gathering and high-pressure transmission systenangport the gas to storage fields, processingqla
pipeline interconnections or other locatio

» Storage and other J4nacludes revenues from gas storage, appliance erante, facility development and
other energ-related service:

Our gas sales, end user transportation and intéateetlansportation volumes, revenues and net iecama
impacted by weather. Given the seasonal naturerdbasiness, revenues and net income are concahtrathe firs
and fourth quarters of the calendar year. By thieddrihe first quarter, the heating season is lgrgeer, and we
typically realize substantially reduced revenues @arnings in the second quarter and losses ithiftequarter.

Our operations are not dependent upon a limitedbeuraf customers, and the loss of any one or a few
customers would not have a material adverse effecur Gas Utility segment.

Natural Gas Supply

Our gas distribution system has a planned maximaity dendeut capacity of 2.6 Bcf, with approximately 6
of the volume coming from underground storage i@ Peak-use requirements are met through uidizatf our
storage facilities, pipeline transportation capa@nd purchased gas supplies. Because of our g@ugrdiversity c
supply and our pipeline transportation and stoEgmcity, we are able to reliably meet our supptjuirements. W
believe natural gas supply and pipeline capacitihei sufficiently available to meet market demaindthe
foreseeable future.
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We purchase natural gas supplies in the open mhykedntracting with producers and marketers, aad w
maintain a diversified portfolio of natural gas plypcontracts. Supplier, producing region, quantiyd available
transportation diversify our natural gas supplyebd¥e obtain our natural gas supply from varioug&es in
different geographic areas (Gulf Coast, Mid-Contin€anada and Michigan) under agreements thatindygth
pricing and terms. Gas supply pricing is genertédlgl to NYMEX and published price indices to appnoate
current market prices.

We are directly connected to interstate pipelipesyiding access to most of the major natural ggply
producing regions in the Gulf Coast, Mid-Continant Canadian regions. Our primary long-term trartation
supply contracts are as follows:

Availability Contract

(MMcf/d) Expiration
TransCanada PipeLines Limit 53 201c
Great Lakes Gas Transmission L. 30 201
Vector Pipeline L.P. 50 2012
ANR Pipeline Compan 24t 201z
Viking Gas Transmission Compa 51 201z
Panhandle Eastern Pipeline Comp 75 202¢

Properties

We own distribution, transmission and storage pridgeethat are located in the State of Michigant Ou
distribution system includes approximately 19,00@sof distribution mains, approximately 1,177,6@0vice line
and approximately 1,312,000 active meters. We gupmaximately 2,100 miles of transmission lines tthaliver
natural gas to the distribution districts and iotemect our storage fields with the sources of sugpd the market
areas.

We own properties relating to four underground redtgas storage fields with an aggregate workirggarag
capacity of approximately 132 Bcf. These facilittgse important in providing reliable and cost-efffee service to
our customers. In addition, we sell storage sesvioghird parties. Most of our distribution andrtsmission
property is located on property owned by otherswwsat by us through easements, permits or liceBsdstantially
all of our property is subject to the lien of a ngaige.

We own 666 miles of transportation and gatheriran¢atility) pipelines in the northern lower penitesof
Michigan. We lease a portion of our pipeline systerthe Vector Pipeline Partnership (an affiligtgpugh a
capital-lease arrangement. See Note 19 of the Not€snsolidated Financial Statements in Item ghisf Report.

Regulation

MichCon'’s business is subject to the regulatorisgliction of the MPSC, which issues orders pertajnd
rates, recovery of certain costs, including theésoéregulatory assets, conditions of servicepanting and
operating-related matters. MichCon’'s MPSC-apprawetes charged to customers have historically besigded to
allow for the recovery of costs, plus an authorizzé of return on our investments. MichCon operatgtural gas
transportation and storage facilities in Michiganirgrastate facilities regulated by the MPSC amvigles intrastate
transportation and storage services pursuant MRBC-approved tariff. MichCon also provides intatst
transportation and storage services in accordaitbeaww Operating Statement on file with the FER@ &lve subjec
to the requirements of other regulatory agenci¢l mispect to safety, the environment and health.

See Note 12 of the Notes to the Consolidated FinhB8tatements in Item 8 of this Report.
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Energy Assistance Prograr

Energy assistance programs, funded by the fedevargment and the State of Michigan, remain cilitica
MichCon'’s ability to control its uncollectible aagats receivable and collections expenses. MichCanéllectible
accounts receivable expense is directly affectethbyevel of government-funded assistance itsifyirad
customers receive. We work continuously with theté&of Michigan and others to determine whethesttare of
funding allocated to our customers is represergaifithe number of low-income individuals in oungee territory.

Strategy and Competition

Our strategy is to be the preferred provider ofiratgas in Michigan. As a result of more efficifuntnaces an
appliances, and customer conservation due to taglral gas prices and economic conditions, we éxXpaae sale
volumes to decline. We expect to minimize the imipaé declines in usage through regulatory mecihasise have
requested in our current rate case, which williplytdecouple our revenue levels from sales volsinvée continue
to provide energy-related services that capitalize@ur expertise, capabilities and efficient systeWie continue to
focus on lowering our operating costs by improvapgrating efficiencies.

Competition in the gas business primarily invole#iser natural gas providers, as well as providérs o
alternative fuels and energy sources. The primaecyg of competition for end user transportatiocoist and
reliability. Some large commercial and industriabmmers have the ability to switch to alternafivel sources such
as coal, electricity, oil and steam. If these comis were to choose an alternative fuel sourcg,woaild not have a
need for our end-user transportation service. titimsh, some of these customers could bypass qalipe system
and have their gas delivered directly from an stege pipeline. We compete against alternativedoetces by
providing competitive pricing and reliable servisepported by our storage capacity.

Our extensive transmission pipeline system hasledals to market 400 to 500 Bcf annually for intediate
transportation services and storage services fohigan gas producers, marketers, distribution camegaand other
pipeline companies. We operate in a central gedigdpcation with connections to major Midwestenterstate
pipelines that extend throughout the Midwest, eadtinited States and eastern Canada.

MichCon'’s storage capacity is used to store nagaalfor delivery to MichCon’s customers as welsalsl to
third parties, under a variety of arrangementspfaiods up to three years. Prices for storage geraents for short
periods are generally higher, but more volatiletfa longer periods. Prices are influenced pritgdyy market
conditions and natural gas pricing.

GAS STORAGE AND PIPELINES

Description

Gas Storage and Pipelines owns partnership ingeiresivo interstate transmission pipelines and matural ga
storage fields. The pipeline and storage assetsramarily supported by long-term, fixed-price reve contracts.
We have a partnership interest in Vector Pipelwiecfor), an interstate transmission pipeline, whiohnects
Michigan to Chicago and Ontario. We also hold penghip interests in Millennium Pipeline Company e¥hi
indirectly connects southern New York State to Uggdalwest/Canadian supply, while providing trangption
service into the New York City markets. We haveage assets in Michigan capable of storing up tB&dn
natural gas storage fields located in Southeashigiém. The Washington 10 and 28 storage facilaieshigh
deliverability storage fields having bi-directioriaterconnections with Vector Pipeline and MichGwoviding our
customers access to the Chicago, Michigan, othdmeist and Ontario markets.

Our customers include various utilities, pipelinasd producers and marketers.
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Properties
The Gas Storage and Pipelines business holds tbwifag property:
Property Classification % Owned Description Location
Pipelines
Vector Pipeline 40%  348-mile pipeline witk  IN, IL, MI & Ontario
1,300 MMcf per day
capacity
Millennium Pipeline 26% 182-mile pipeline witt New York
525 MMcf per day
capacity
Storage
Washington 10 (includes Shelby 2 Storage) 10(% 74 Bcf of storage Ml
capacity
Washington 28 50% 16 Bcf of storage Ml
capacity

The assets of these businesses are well integréttedther DTE Energy operations. Pursuant to arating
agreement, MichCon provides physical operationsnt@aance, and technical support for the Washing®and
Washington 10 storage facilities.

Regulation

The Gas Storage and Pipelines business operateslrgds storage facilities in Michigan as intréstacilities
regulated by the MPSC and provides intrastate gtoaad related services pursuant to an MRS@roved tariff. Wi
also provide interstate services in accordance avitperating Statement on file with the FERC. ¥eand
Millennium Pipelines provide interstate transpodatservices in accordance with their FERC-appraeeiffs.

Strategy and Competition

Our Gas Storage and Pipelines business expectstimge its steady growth plan by expanding existinsets
and developing new assets that are typically supgavith long-term customer commitments. The Gasdge and
Pipelines business focuses on asset developmeattapities in the Midwest-to-Northeast region tgly natural
gas to meet growing demand. We expect much ofrineth in the demand for natural gas in the U.Sxdour
within the Mid-Atlantic and New England regions. \fdeecast these regions will require incrementpéfpihe and
gas storage infrastructure necessary to delivevglasnes to meet growing demand. Vector is an stéée pipeline
that is filling a large portion of that need, asccomplemented by our Michigan storage facilittias2009, we
completed the Shelby 2 storage field at our Wagbm@0 storage complex which increased the caphyity Bcf.
Also in 2009, Vector Pipeline completed its Atheiéchigan Compressor Station expansion which ineeddts
long-haul capacity by approximately 100 MMcf/d t@ Bcf/d. Due to the proximity of the Millenniumpgiline to
the Marcellus Shale in Southern New York/Northeemsylvania, we anticipate that the Millennium Hipemay
have opportunities to expand in the future.

UNCONVENTIONAL GAS PRODUCTION

Description

Our Unconventional Gas Production business is esdjagnatural gas exploration, development and ywtian
primarily within the Barnett shale in north Texas.

In 2009, we added proved reserves of 67 Bcfe riagult year-end total proved reserves of 234 Btfee
Barnett shale wells yielded 5 Bcfe of productior2009. Barnett shale leasehold acres increase®, 255 gross
acres (63,367 net of interest of others) excludimgairments. Due to economic conditions and
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low natural gas prices during the year, we chosotminimal lease acquisitions and reduce the numbeew
wells. We drilled a total of 11 wells in the Barnsthale acreage in 2009.

Our Barnett Shale gas production requires procgssiextract natural gas liquids. Therefore, oulisnere
dedicated to various gathering and processing coiepén the Fort Worth Basin. The revenues recefoedll
products are based on prevailing market prices.

Properties and Other

The following information pertains to our interestghe Barnett shale as of December 31:

2009 2008 2007

Producing Wells(1)(2)(3 16¢ 15E 12C
Developed Lease Acreage(1)(3) 14,96¢ 14,24¢ 9,88(
Undeveloped Lease Acreage(1)(3) 48,39¢ 46,18 38,06¢
Production Volume (Bcfe 5.C 5.C 3.C
Proved Reserves (Bcfe)( 234 167 144
Capital Expenditures (in millions)(: $ 26 $ 10 $ 89
Future Undiscounted Cash Flows (in millions) $ 392 $ 324 $ 521
Average Gas Price, excluding hedge contracts (pe) $ 432 $ 86 $ 6.2¢

(1) Excludes the interest of othe

(2) Producing wells are the number of wells that atsibto be capable of producing hydrocarbons in@afit
quantities such that proceeds from the sale optbduction exceed production expenses and ti

(3) Excludes sold and impaired properti

(4) Developed lease acreage is the number of acrearthatlocated or assignable to productive wellw@lts
capable of productior

(5) Undeveloped lease acreage is the number of acredich wells have not been drilled or completed fmoint
that would permit the production of commercial gtitées of natural gas and oil regardless of whetheh
acreage contains proved resen

(6) The increase in proved reserves in 2009 is primdrik to a definitional change in the disclosute rssued by
the SEC and technological improveme!

(7) Represents the standardized measure of undiscoiutird net cash flows utilizing extensive estinsafehe
estimated future net cash flow computations shaotde considered to represent our estimate aofxpected
revenues or the current value of existing provegmees and do not include the impact of hedge actst

Strategy and Competition

We manage and operate our properties to maximigenseon investment and increase earnings. Werogntic
develop our holdings in the western portion of Baenett shale and seek opportunities for acquirsstior
divestitures of select properties within our assete, when conditions are appropriate. Competfitiessures in the
Barnett shale have decreased due to lower commpdigs resulting in reduced investment by induptiticipants
This downward pressure has created opportunitiessfeo reduce operating expenses and grow at loggtrthan in
prior periods.
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From time to time, we use financial derivative cants to manage a portion of our exposure to chaimngéne
price of natural gas on our forecasted naturalgéess. The following is a summary of the financiahtracts in plac
at December 31, 2009 related to Barnett shale jotau

2010
Long-term fixed price obligations
Volume (Bcf) 1.2
Price (per Mcf) $7.1€

In 2010, we expect to drill approximately 10 tovtélls in the Barnett shale. Investment for the asesxpected
to be approximately $25 million during 2010.

POWER AND INDUSTRIAL PROJECTS

Description

Power and Industrial Projects is comprised pringasflprojects that deliver energy products andises/to
industrial, commercial and institutional customgmgyvide coal transportation and marketing; antledettricity
from biomass-fired energy projects. This busineggrent provides services using project assetslydoehted on
or near the customers’ premises in the steel, antive) pulp and paper, airport and other industries

Products and services include pulverized coal atbjeum coke supply, metallurgical coke supplywen
generation, steam production, chilled water productwastewater treatment, compressed air supplyeguced
emission fuel. We own and operate one gas-firelipgalectric generating plant, two biomass-firéeteric
generating plants and own one coal-fired powertplawo additional biomass-fired electric generatoignts are
currently under development pending certain reguyadpprovals with expected service dates of August 2010 ¢
March 2013. Production tax credits related to tfvithe coke battery facilities expired on DecemhbkrZ)09.

We also provide coal transportation services inalgduel, transportation, storage, blending antlequipment
management services. Our external customers ingleatric utilities, merchant power producers, gnéded steel
mills and large industrial companies with signifitenergy requirements. Additionally, we particgat coal
marketing and the purchase and sale of emissi@diter We own and operate a coal transloading texinm South
Chicago, lllinois.

We develop, own and operate landfill gas recovgsgesns throughout the United States. Landfill gas,
byproduct of solid waste decomposition, is compasfezpproximately equal portions of methane antvaar
dioxide. We develop landfill gas recovery systehst tapture the gas and provide local utilitiedpstry and
consumers with an opportunity to use a competit@rewable source of energy, in addition to prangdi
environmental benefits by reducing greenhouse gassions. This business segment performs coal mateane
extraction, in which we recover methane gas fromewioids for processing and delivery to naturalgpslines.

We deliver reduced emission fuel to utilities watbal-fired electric generation power plants. We @amd
operate five facilities that process raw coal iduced emission fuel resulting in significant retthns in Nitrogen
Oxide (NO), Sulfur Dioxide (SQ), and Mercury (Hg) emissions. Production tax diedre expected to be
generated by these facilities beginning in 2010 @dinuing for ten years upon achieving certaiteds, including
entering into transactions with unrelated equitstnpars or third-party customers for the reducedssion fuel. We
expect to reduce our ownership interests in thasiéties in 2010. We are investors in steel induéiel entities
which sell steel industry fuel to unrelated partieshree coke battery sites. Steel industry fiadiities recycle tar
decanter sludge, a byproduct of the coking procees credits were generated in 2009 and we expegtmerate
additional credits in 2010. The ability to genertabe credits from the steel industry fuel processires at the end of
2010.

16




Table of Contents

Properties and Othe

WPD-6
Screening Data Part 1 of 2
Page 4001 of 9808

The following are significant properties operatgdie Power and Industrial projects segment;

Facility
Steel

Pulverized Coal Operatiot

Coke Production

Other Investment in Coke Production

On-Site Energy
Automotive

Airports

Power & Renewables
Pulp and Pape

Power Generatio
Other Industries
Reduced Emission Fu
Coal Terminaling
Pulverized PetCok
Landfill Gas Recover

Landfill Gas Recover

Landfill Sites
Gas Produced (in Bc

Coal Transportation and Marketing

Tons of Coal Shipped(:

Location

MI & MD
MlI, PA & IN

IN

Various sites in
MI, IN, OH, NY & PA

Ml & PA

AL
Ml

MI

IL

MS

Various U.S. Site

Service Type

Pulverized Coa

Metallurgical Coke Supply/Steel Industry
Fuels

Metallurgical Coke Supply/Steel Industry
Fuels

Electric Distribution, Chilled Water,
Waste Water, Steam, Cooling Tower
Water, Reverse Osmosis Water,
Compressed Air, Mist and Dust
Collectors, Steam and Chilled Wa
Electricity, Hot and Chilled Wate

Electric Generation and Stee
Natural Gas

Reduced Emission Fuel Supj
Coal Terminal and Blendin
Pulverized Petroleum Col
Landfill Gas Productiol

2009 2008 2007

23 23 28
19.€¢ 18.€ 23t

2009 2008 2007
(in Millions)

20 18 35

(1) Includes intercompany transactions of 1 milliomi@lion, and 19 million tons in 2009, 2008, and ZQ0
respectively, primarily related to synfuel operasan 2007

Production Tax Credits Generated (Allocated to DTEEnergy)

Coke Battery(1

Steel Industry Fuels(z
Power Generatio
Landfill Gas Recover

200¢ 2008 2007
(in Millions)

$ $ $

PN~
I ol o
(AJI\)lU'I

(1) Tax laws enabling production tax credits relatetio coke battery facilities expired on DecemberZ109.
(2) IRS regulations enabling the steel industry fueldi@edits are scheduled to expire on December G10..

17




WPD-6

Table of Contents Screening Data Part 1 of 2
Page 4002 of 9808

Strategy and Competition

Power and Industrial Projects will continue levénagts energy-related operating experience angepto
management capability to develop and grow our steeéwable power; on-site energy; coal transportat
marketing, storage and blending; landfill gas recgyand reduced emission fuel businesses. Wenalscontinue
to pursue opportunities to provide asset managear@hbperations services to third parties. Thezdianited
competitors for our existing disparate businesdes grovide similar products and services.

We anticipate building around our core strengthth@nmarkets where we operate. In determining takets ir
which to compete, we examine closely the regulaémy competitive environment, the number of contpegiand
our ability to achieve sustainable margins. We ptamaximize the effectiveness of our inter-reldbedinesses as
we expand. As we pursue growth opportunities, st priority will be to achieve value-added retsirn

We intend to focus on the following areas for growt

« Acquiring and developing landfill gas recovery fdigs, renewable energy projects, and other enprgject:
qualifying for tax credits; an

* Providing operating services to owners of induktial power plants

After experiencing a weakened U.S. economy inclgdionstricted capital and credit markets, we expect
return to normal demand for our steel-related petglin 2010 improving the financial performanceaf coke
battery and pulverized coal operations. In addjtam two primary automotive customers, Generaldvioand
Chrysler, have emerged from bankruptcy and we naetproviding onsite products and services. Weaaifitinue
to monitor the steel and automotive industriesadipoduring 2010.

Our Coal Transportation and Marketing business euititinue to leverage its existing business in 20t6nds
such as carbon and greenhouse gas legislatiomadiand mining consolidation and the lack of detyan
developing new mines could have an impact on howavepete in the future. In 2011, our existing ldagn rail
transportation contract, which is at rates sigaifity below the current market, will expire and avicipate a
decrease in transportation-related revenue of appedely $120 million as a result. We will continteework with
suppliers and the railroads to promote secure antpetitive access to coal to meet the energy remgnts of our
customers. We will seek to build our capacity smport, store and blend greater amounts of cabégpect to
continue to grow our business in a manner congistgh, and complementary to, the growth of ouresthusiness
segments.

ENERGY TRADING

Description

Energy Trading focuses on physical and financiatgroand gas marketing and trading, structured &etiens,
enhancement of returns from DTE Energy’s assefgmt optimization of contracted natural gas pipel
transportation and storage, and power transmigsidrgenerating capacity positions. Our customes [sas
predominantly utilities, local distribution compasj pipelines, and other marketing and trading @mgs. We entt
into derivative financial instruments as part of marketing and hedging activities. Most of theivktive financial
instruments are accounted for under the mark-tdcetanethod, which results in the recognition iméags of
unrealized gains and losses from changes in thedhie of the derivatives. We utilize forwardstuites, swaps and
option contracts to mitigate risk associated with marketing and trading activity as well as foogmietary trading
within defined risk guidelines. Energy Trading afgsovides commodity risk management services tather
businesses within DTE Energy.

Significant portions of the electric and gas marigeind trading portfolio are economically hedgEde
portfolio includes financial instruments and gageintory, as well as contracted natural gas pipelarel storage ar
power transmission and generation capacity positibtost financial instruments are deemed derivatiiewever,
gas inventory, power transmission, pipelines amthtestorage assets are not derivatives. As dtyéisis segment
may experience earnings volatility as derivativesraarked-to-market without revaluing the undeyion-
derivative contracts and assets. This resultsimsgand losses that are
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recognized in different accounting periods. We nimayir mark-to-market gains or losses in one pettiad could
reverse in subsequent periods.

Regulation

Energy Trading has market-based rate authority fte~ERC to sell power and authority from FERGet
natural gas at market prices. Energy Trading igestilto FERC reporting requirements and market biehaules.
Energy Trading also complies with position limitedareporting requirements related to financialitvgdset by the
Commodity Futures Trading Commission.

Strategy and Competition

Our strategy for the energy trading business tetiver value-added services to our customers. §é& ®©
manage this business in a manner consistent witlttamplementary to the growth of our other busirseggnents.
We focus on physical marketing and the optimizatibour portfolio of energy assets. We compete wl#éctric anc
gas marketers, financial institutions, traderditigts and other energy providers. The trading hess is dependent
upon the availability of capital and an investmgrade credit rating. The Company believes it haglamvailable
capital capacity to support Energy Trading aceatiWwe monitor our use of capital closely to ensoat our
commitments do not exceed capacity. A materialitredtriction would negatively impact our finanicia
performance. Competitors with greater access tdatap at a lower cost may have a competitive athge. We
have risk management and credit processes to mamtbmitigate risk.

CORPORATE & OTHER

Description

Corporate & Other includes various holding compaatyvities and holds certain non-utility debt amegy-
related investments.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Synthetic Fuel

Description

Due to the expiration of synfuel production taxdite at the end of 2007, the Synthetic Fuel busitessed
operations and was classified as a discontinuethtipe as of December 31, 2007. Synfuel plants étediv
changed coal and waste coal into a synthetic fueletermined under the Internal Revenue Code. Btiotiutax
credits were provided for the production and sélkeotid synthetic fuel produced from coal and waveailable
through December 31, 2007.

2007
(in Millions)
Production Tax Credits Generated
Allocated to DTE Energ $ 21
Allocated to partner 18¢€
$ 207

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

We are subject to extensive environmental reguiatalditional costs may result as the effects ofores
substances on the environment are studied and goeaital regulations are developed and implemewtetal
costs to comply could vary substantially. We expeatontinue recovering environmental costs related
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to utility operations through rates charged to @ustomers. The following table summarizes our esttiah
significant future environmental expenditures basgon current regulations:

Electric ~ Gas Total
(in Millions)
Air $2,20C  $— $2,20(
Water 58 — 58
MGP sites 5 36 41
Other sites 21 2 23
Estimated total future expenditures through 2 $2,281 $38 $2,31¢
Estimated 2010 expenditur $ 82 §$5 § 87
Estimated 2011 expenditur $ 258 $6 $ 25¢

Air — Detroit Edison is subject to the EPA ozone transand acid rain regulations that limit power plant
emissions of sulfur dioxide and nitrogen oxidesc8i2005, EPA and the State of Michigan have isadeédional
emission reduction regulations relating to ozoime particulate, regional haze and mercury airytimh. The new
rules will lead to additional controls on fossilkefad power plants to reduce nitrogen oxide, sulfakide and
mercury emissions. Further, additional rulemakiagsexpected over the next few years which coudire
additional controls for sulfur dioxide, nitrogenid&s and hazardous air pollutants. It is not pdssdbquantify the
impact of those expected rulemakings at this time.

Water —In response to an EPA regulation, Detroit Edisareggiired to examine alternatives for reducing the
environmental impacts of the cooling water intatkactures at several of its facilities. Based amribsults of
completed studies and expected future studiespD&dison may be required to perform some mitmatctivities,
including the possible installation of additionahtrol technologies to reduce the environmentakiotpf the intake
structures. However, a January 2007 circuit coecision remanded back to the EPA several provisifiise
federal regulation, resulting in a delay in comptyivith the regulation. In 2008, the U.S. SupremerCagreed to
review the remanded cost-benefit analysis provisiaihe rule and in April 2009 upheld EPA’s uselué provision
in determining best available technology for redga@nvironmental impacts. Concurrently, the EPAticores to
develop a revised rule, a draft of which is expédttebe published by summer 2010. The EPA haspalgmosed an
information collection request to begin a reviewstdfam electric effluent guidelines. It is not polesat this time to
quantify the impacts of these developing requireisien

Manufactured Gas Plant (MGP) and Other Sites?rier to the construction of major interstate naktgas
pipelines, gas for heating and other uses was raatwred locally from processes involving coal, cokeil. The
facilities, which produced gas for heating and otiees, have been designated as MGP sites. Gity bitins, or
previously owned, fifteen such former MGP sitestrBie Edison owns, or previously owned, three formksP
sites. In addition to the MGP sites, we are alsthénprocess of cleaning up other sites where oginion is
present as a result of historical and ongoingtytilperations. These other sites include an engidessh storage
facility, electrical distribution substations, gaipelines, and underground and aboveground stdeadgeocations.
Cleanup activities associated with these sitesheiltonducted over the next several years.

Landfill — Detroit Edison owns and operates a permittedreyaged ash storage facility at the Monroe Power
Plant to dispose of fly ash from the coal fired gowlant. Detroit Edison performed an engineeringlysis in 2009
and identified the need for embankment side slepairs and reconstruction.

The EPA has expressed its intentions to developfaderal regulations for coal ash under the autyofithe
Resources Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA)od@sed regulation is expected in the first quarte010.
Among the options EPA is currently consideringg isiling that may designate coal ash as a “Hazartidaste” as
defined by RCRA. However, agencies and legislatbee® urged EPA to regulate coal ash as a non-thauzsir
waste. If EPA were to designate coal ash as a ezamwaste, the agency could apply some, or alheotlisposal
and reuse standards that have been applied toetlsting hazardous wastes.
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Some of the regulatory actions currently being eomlated could have a material adverse impact ooperations
and financial position and the rates we chargecastomers.

Global Climate Change -€limate regulation and/or legislation is being preed and discussed within the
U.S. Congress and the EPA. On June 26, 2009, tAheHbuse of Representatives passed the AmericamCle
Energy and Security Act (ACESA). The ACESA inclu@esap and trade program that would start in 202 a
provides for costs to emit greenhouse gases. Beapiton by the Senate Environmental and Publické/or
Committee to pass a similar but more stringentibiDctober 2009, full Senate action on a climaliedgnot
expected before the spring of 2010. Meanwhile BR@ is beginning to implement regulatory actiondenthe
Clean Air Act to address emission of greenhousegdending or future legislation or other regulatctions
could have a material impact on our operationsfarahcial position and the rates we charge ourausts. Impact
include expenditures for environmental equipmenobe what is currently planned, financing costated to
additional capital expenditures and the purchassrogsion allowances from market sources. We weseikk to
recover these incremental costs through increased charged to our utility customers. Increasetsdor energy
produced from traditional sources could also insegthe economic viability of energy produced franawable
and/or nuclear sources and energy efficiency s and the development of market-based tradimgutoon
offsets providing business opportunities for oulitytand non-utility segments. It is not possilidequantify these
impacts on DTE Energy or its customers at this time

Non-utility —Our non-utility affiliates are subject to a numbéenvironmental laws and regulations dealing
with the protection of the environment from variqa@lutants. Our non-utility affiliates are subdially in
compliance with all environmental requirements.

See Notes 12 and 20 of the Notes to ConsolidateghEial Statements in Item 8 of this Report and
Management’s Discussion and Analysis in Item haf Report.

EMPLOYEES

We had 10,244 employees as of December 31, 200¢hich 5,186 were represented by unions. The nigjori
of our union employees are under contracts thatexp June and October 2010 and August 2012.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

There are various risks associated with the operatf DTE Energy’s utility and non-utility busirses. To
provide a framework to understand the operatingreninent of DTE Energy, we are providing a brieplxation
of the more significant risks associated with ousibhesses. Although we have tried to identify aisdubs key risk
factors, others could emerge in the future. Eadh@following risks could affect our performance.

Regional and national economic conditions can havenfavorable impact on usOur utility and non-utility
businesses follow the economic cycles of the custerwe serve. Our utilities and certain non-utiiysinesses
provide services to the domestic automotive anel stedustries which have undergone considerabbnfiral
distress, exacerbating the decline in regional econ conditions. Should national or regional ecoioonditions
further decline, reduced volumes of electricity gad, and demand for energy services we supplgatioins of
accounts receivable and potentially higher levélsst or stolen gas will result in decreased aagaiand cash flow.

Adverse changes in our credit ratings may negatiaéfect us. Regional and national economic conditin
increased scrutiny of the energy industry and etguy changes, as well as changes in our econcenformance,
could result in credit agencies reexamining ouditmating. While credit ratings reflect the opin®of the credit
agencies issuing such ratings and may not neclseeftect actual performance, a downgrade in gedit rating
below investment grade could restrict or discorgiour ability to access capital markets and coesdlt in an
increase in our borrowing costs, a reduced levehgftal expenditures and could impact future emsiand cash
flows. In addition, a reduction in credit rating yna
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require us to post collateral related to variougsital or financially settled contracts for the ¢hase of energy-
related commodities, products and services, whichdcimpact our liquidity.

Our ability to access capital markets is importar@ur ability to access capital markets is impdrtaroperate
our businesses. In the past, turmoil in credit re&rkas constrained, and may again in the futurstn, our
ability as well as the ability of our subsidiartesssue new debt, including commercial paper, rafidance existing
debt at reasonable interest rates. In additionletie of borrowing by other energy companies dr&rarket as a
whole could limit our access to capital markets. Wage substantial amounts of credit facilities #rgtire in 2010.
We intend to seek to renew the facilities on oobethe expiration dates. However, we cannot ptékdé&outcome
of these efforts, which could result in a decraassamounts available and/or an increase in ourdvang costs and
negatively impact our financial performance.

Poor investment performance of pension and othstrptirement benefit plan holdings and other fastor
impacting benefit plan costs could unfavorably ietpaur liquidity and results of operationsOur costs of
providing noneontributory defined benefit pension plans and offwestretirement benefit plans are dependent u
number of factors, such as the rates of returnlam gssets, the level of interest rates used tsunedhe required
minimum funding levels of the plans, future goveamnregulation, and our required or voluntary cibuotions
made to the plans. The performance of the debegoiy markets affects the value of assets thahelein trust to
satisfy future obligations under our plans. We hsigaificant benefit obligations and hold signifitassets in trust
to satisfy these obligations. These assets areattioj market fluctuations and will yield uncertagurns, which
may fall below our projected return rates. A deglin the market value of the pension and postragré benefit
plan assets will increase the funding requirementter our pension and postretirement benefit pfahg actual
asset returns do not recover these declines ifotheeeable future. Additionally, our pension andtpetirement
benefit plan liabilities are sensitive to changemierest rates. As interest rates decreaseidbiitles increase,
potentially increasing benefit expense and fundewuirements. Also, if future increases in pensind
postretirement benefit costs as a result of redptat assets are not recoverable from Detroit EdisdvlichCon
customers, the results of operations and finampaiaition of our company could be negatively affdci&ithout
sustained growth in the plan investments over tuniecrease the value of our plan assets, we doeilgtquired to
fund our plans with significant amounts of cashctsoash funding obligations could have a mateniglact on our
cash flows, financial position, or results of openas.

If our goodwill becomes impaired, we may be reglib@record a charge to earningswe annually review th
carrying value of goodwill associated with acquigis made by the Company for impairment. Factaas ey be
considered for purposes of this analysis includedrange in circumstances indicating that the @agryalue of our
goodwill may not be recoverable such as a declirsack price and market capitalization, futurehcaws, and
slower growth rates in our industry. We cannot mtetthe timing, strength or duration of any econoslowdown o
subsequent recovery, worldwide or in the economyarkets in which we operate, however, when evants
changes in circumstances indicate that the carmahge of these assets may not be recoverabl&€dhgany may
take a non-cash impairment charge, which couldriatty materially impact our results of operaticarsd financial
position.

Our participation in energy trading markets subgas to risk. Events in the energy trading industry have
increased the level of scrutiny on the energy tmgdliusiness and the energy industry as a wholeerhain situation
we may be required to post collateral to suppaditrg operations, which could be substantial. tkeas to liquidity
to support trading activities is curtailed, we @bakperience decreased earnings potential andfilcash Energy
trading activities take place in volatile marketsi &xpose us to risks related to commodity priceentents. We
routinely have speculative trading positions interket, within strict policy guidelines we setsutting from the
management of our business portfolio. To the ex@¢patulative trading positions exist, fluctuatirgrnenodity price
can improve or diminish our financial results amdhcial position. We manage our exposure by eistdhf and
enforcing strict risk limits and risk managemerdagqadures. During periods of extreme volatility sheisk limits
and risk management procedures may not work asi@thand cannot eliminate all risks associated thitise
activities. As a result, we cannot predict the iotghat our energy trading and risk managementi®t may have
on our business, operating results or financiaitjpos
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We are exposed to credit risk of counterpartiehwihom we do businessidverse economic conditions
affecting, or financial difficulties of, counterpies with whom we do business could impair theighdf these
counterparties to pay for our services or fulfikir contractual obligations, or cause them toydslach payments or
obligations. We depend on these counterpartiesrtit payments on a timely basis. Any delay or défaypayment
could adversely affect our cash flows, financiadiion, or results of operations.

We are subject to rate regulationElectric and gas rates for our utilities arelsethe MPSC and the FERC ¢
cannot be increased without regulatory authoripatitde may be negatively impacted by new regulatams
interpretations by the MPSC, the FERC or other latguy bodies. Our ability to recover costs mayirhpacted by
the time lag between the incurrence of costs aaddbovery of the costs in customers’ rates. Ogulegors also
may decide to disallow recovery of certain costsuistomerstates if they determine that those costs do not the
standards for recovery under our governing lawsragdlations. The State of Michigan will elect angovernor
and legislature in 2010 and we cannot predict titeane of that election. We cannot predict whe#tection
results or changes in political conditions willedf the regulations or interpretations affecting wtilities. New
legislation, regulations or interpretations coutiege how our business operates, impact our atulitgcover costs
through rate increases or require us to incur adit expenses.

We may be required to refund amounts we colleceuself-implemented ratesMichigan law allows our
utilities to self-implement rate changes six morgfter a rate filing, subject to certain limitat®orHowever, if the
final rate case order provides for lower rates tvarhave self-implemented, we must refund the diffee, with
interest. We have self-implemented rates in thé grad have been ordered to make refunds to cussoi@er
financial performance may be negatively affectathéf MPSC sets lower rates in future rate casesttiase we
have self-implemented, thereby requiring us todssfunds. We cannot predict what rates an MPS€ravdl
adopt in future rate cases.

Michigan’s electric Customer Choice program coushjatively impact our financial performancelhe electri
Customer Choice program, as originally contemplaiddichigan, anticipated an eventual transitioratmtally
deregulated and competitive environment where ousits would be charged market-based rates for ¢festricity.
The State of Michigan currently experiences a td/brarket, where the MPSC continues to regulataraaates fo
our customers, while alternative electric suppl@rarge markebased rates. In addition, such regulated eleate:
for certain groups of our customers exceed theafostrvice to those customers. Due to distortéziny
mechanisms during the initial implementation perdelectric Customer Choice, many commercial ausics
chose alternative electric suppliers. MPSC rateisrdnd recent energy legislation enacted by thie 8t Michigan
are phasing out the pricing disparity over fivergegnd have placed a cap on the total potentiaioGes Choice
related migration. However, even with the eleaBicstomer Choice-related relief received in recesir@t Edison
rate orders and the legislated 10 percent cap ditipation in the electric Customer Choice progranere
continues to be financial risk associated witheteetric Customer Choice program. Electric Custo@ievice
migration is sensitive to market price and bundikxttric service price increases.

Weather significantly affects operation®eviations from normal hot and cold weather ctads affect our
earnings and cash flow. Mild temperatures can téswaecreased utilization of our assets, lowemtpme and cas
flow. Ice storms, tornadoes, or high winds can dzerthe electric distribution system infrastructangl require us
perform emergency repairs and incur material umgdrexpenses. The expenses of storm restoratiorisafiiay nc
be fully recoverable through the regulatory process

Operation of a nuclear facility subjects us to ristownership of an operating nuclear generatingtgahjects
us to significant additional risks. These riskdiie, among others, plant security, environmerggulation and
remediation, and operational factors that can Sgitly impact the performance and cost of opagad nuclear
facility. While we maintain insurance for variougatearrelated risks, there can be no assurances thatrssiotanc
will be sufficient to cover our costs in the evehin accident or business interruption at our earcfenerating
plant, which may affect our financial performance.

Construction and capital improvements to our poteeilities subject us to risk.We are managing ongoing
and planning future significant construction angdita improvement projects at multiple power
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generation and distribution facilities. Many factéhat could cause delay or increased prices &setitomplex
projects are beyond our control, including the afshaterials and labor, subcontractor performatioeng and
issuance of necessary permits, construction disgartd weather conditions. Failure to complete tipesgects on
schedule and on budget for any reason could adyexffect our financial performance and operatiahthe
affected facilities.

The supply and/or price of energy commodities andlated services may impact our financial resulté/e
are dependent on coal for much of our electricabgating capacity. Price fluctuations, fuel supgisruptions and
increases in transportation costs could have ativegenpact on the amounts we charge our utilitgtomers for
electricity and on the profitability of our non4itff business. Our access to natural gas supliestical to ensure
reliability of service for our utility gas custonseWe have hedging strategies and regulatory regawechanisms
in place to mitigate negative fluctuations in conality supply prices, but there can be no assurathegour
financial performance will not be negatively impattby price fluctuations. The price of natural ges® impacts the
market for our non-utility businesses that compeéta utilities and alternative electric suppliers.

The supply and/or price other industrial raw andished inputs and/or related services may impact ou
financial results We are dependent on supplies of certain comnasdisiuch as copper and limestone, among
others, and industrial materials and services deoto maintain day-to-day operations and mainteaar our
facilities. Price fluctuations or supply interrupts for these commodities and other items coule lranegative
impact on the amounts we charge our customersufioutility products and on the profitability of onon-utility
businesses.

Unplanned power plant outages may be costlinforeseen maintenance may be required to spfeljuce
electricity or comply with environmental regulat®ms a result of unforeseen maintenance, we magdéred to
make spot market purchases of electricity that edarir costs of generation. Our financial perforogamay be
negatively affected if we are unable to recovehdncreased costs.

Our estimates of gas reserves are subject to chaifyile we cannot provide absolute assurance tinat o
estimates of our Barnett gas reserves are accgra, care is exercised in utilizing historicdbimation and
assumptions to develop reasonable estimates okfptoduction and cash flow. We estimate provedrgsarves
and the future net cash flows attributable to theserves. There are numerous uncertainties inhierestimating
guantities of proved gas reserves and cash flowibuthble to such reserves, including factors Inelyour control.
Reserve engineering is a subjective process ahattig underground accumulations of gas that capeobheasured
in an exact manner. The accuracy of an estimatipiaftities of reserves, or of cash flows attriblgdb such
reserves, is a function of the available data,raps$ions regarding expenditures for future developnaad
exploration activities, and of engineering and ggaal interpretation and judgment. Additionallgserves and
future cash flows may be subject to material downveat upward revisions, based upon production hjsto
development and exploration activities and pridegas. Actual future production, revenue, taxesgetigpment
expenditures, operating expenses, quantities olverable reserves and the value of cash flows &ooh reserves
may vary significantly from the assumptions andarhdng information we used.

Our ability to utilize production tax credits mag bmited. To reduce U.S. dependence on imported oil, the
Internal Revenue Code provides production tax tsexi an incentive for taxpayers to produce fuedsedectricity
from alternative sources. We have generated pramutax credits from synfuel, coke production, liihdas
recovery, biomass fired electric generation, redwemission fuel, steel industry fuel and gas prtidnmperations.
We have received favorable private letter rulingsath of the synfuel facilities. All production taxedits taken after
2006 are subject to audit by the Internal Reverergi€e (IRS). If our production tax credits wergallowed in
whole or in part as a result of an IRS audit, theeneld be additional tax liabilities owed for preusly recognized
tax credits that could significantly impact ourm@ags and cash flows. We have also provided cegaarantees ar
indemnities in conjunction with the sales of in&tsain the synfuel facilities.

We rely on cash flows from subsidiarieBTE Energy is a holding company. Cash flows fraum utility and
non-utility subsidiaries are required to pay ing¢rexpenses and dividends on DTE Energy debt and
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securities. Should a major subsidiary not be ablealy dividends or transfer cash flows to DTE Egeogir ability
to pay interest and dividends would be restricted.

Environmental laws and liability may be costlyWe are subject to numerous environmental reguiatiThese
regulations govern air emissions, water qualitysteraater discharge and disposal of solid and hanardiaste.
Compliance with these regulations can significaimtyrease capital spending, operating expenseplantddown
times. These laws and regulations require us tb @e@riety of environmental licenses, permitspewions and
other regulatory approvals. We could be requireidstall expensive pollution control measures mnitlior cease
activities based on these regulations. Additionallg may become a responsible party for environedeteanup at
sites identified by a regulatory body. We cannetdct with certainty the amount and timing of fugwexpenditures
related to environmental matters because of thieudlify of estimating clean up costs. There is alsgertainty in
quantifying liabilities under environmental lawsthmpose joint and several liability on potentiaisponsible
parties.

We may also incur liabilities as a result of pot&rfuture requirements to address climate chasgeis.
Proposals for voluntary initiatives and mandatawgteols are being discussed both in the UnitedeStand
worldwide to reduce greenhouse gases such as cditixide, a by-product of burning fossil fuelsiritreased
regulation of greenhouse gas emissions are impledgetihe operations of our fossil-fuel generatiesess and our
unconventional gas production assets may be sigmifiy impacted. Since there can be no assurahaes t
environmental costs may be recovered through tihaéatory process, our financial performance mandgatively
impacted as a result of environmental matters.

Renewable portfolio standards and energy efficiggrograms may affect our busines$Ve are subject to
Michigan and potential future federal legislatiordaegulation requiring us to secure sources céweble energy.
Under the current Michigan legislation we will legjuired in the future to provide a specified petage of our
power from Michigan renewable energy sources. Véedareloping a strategy for complying with the 8rg state
legislation, but we do not know what requiremengg/rbe added by federal legislation. We are actiealyaged in
developing renewable energy projects and identifyirird party projects in which we can invest. \\mot predict
the financial impact or costs associated with tHetee projects.

We are also required by Michigan legislation to liempent energy efficiency measures and provide gnerg
efficiency customer awareness and education pragrahese requirements necessitate expenditures and
implementation of these programs creates the fiskducing our revenues as customers decreasectigigy usag
We do not know how these programs will impact ausibess and future operating results.

Threats of terrorism or cyber attacks could affegt business. We may be threatened by problems such as
computer viruses or terrorism that may disruptaperations and could harm our operating results.i@lustry
requires the continued operation of sophisticatéarination technology systems and network infragtme. Despit:
our implementation of security measures, all ofteahnology systems are vulnerable to disabilitfadures due to
hacking, viruses, acts of war or terrorism and otaeises. If our information technology systemsaaterfail and w:
were unable to recover in a timely way, we mightibable to fulfill critical business functions, whicould have a
material adverse effect on our business, operagisglts, and financial condition.

In addition, our generation plants, gas pipeline storage facilities and electrical distributiocifiies in
particular may be targets of terrorist activitikattcould disrupt our ability to produce or disti® some portion of
our energy products. We have increased securigyrasult of past events and we may be requiredubyegulators
or by the future terrorist threat environment tckenavestments in security that we cannot curremtidict.

We may not be fully covered by insurand&/e have a comprehensive insurance program ire péaprovide
coverage for various types of risks, including sat@phic damage as a result of acts of God, temodr a
combination of other significant unforeseen evénés could impact our operations. Economic lossightmot be
covered in full by insurance or our insurers mayibable to meet contractual obligations.

Failure to maintain the security of personally iciable information could adversely affect usn connection
with our business we collect and retain persoridiytifiable information of our customers,

25




WPD-6

Table of Contents Screening Data Part 1 of 2
Page 4010 of 9808

shareholders and employees. Our customers, shdezh@nd employees expect that we will adequateliget theil
personal information, and the United States regayaénvironment surrounding information securityl gmivacy is
increasingly demanding. A significant theft, lossraudulent use of customer, shareholder, employ&2TE
Energy data by cybercrime or otherwise could adgiisnpact our reputation and could result in digaint costs,
fines and litigation.

Benefits of continuous improvement initiatives ddu# less than we expectWe have a continuous
improvement program that is expected to resuligniBcant cost savings. Actual results achieveatigh this
program could be less than our expectations.

A work interruption may adversely affect uklnions represent approximately 5,000 of our eryg®s. A union
choosing to strike would have an impact on ourtess. Contracts with several of our unions, incigaiur contrac
with our largest union, representing about 3,800wfemployees, expire on different dates througB06a0. In
addition, our contracts with unions representing small groups of employees expired on Decembe2@19 and
another union is currently negotiating its firshtract. We cannot predict the outcome of any of¢heontract
negotiations, some of which have not yet commendézlare unable to predict the effect a work stoppaguld
have on our costs of operation and financial perforce.

Failure to retain and attract key executive offie@nd other skilled professional and technical eyeés could
have an adverse effect on our operatior@ur business is dependent on our ability to igartain, and motivate
employees. Competition for skilled employees in s@reas is high and the inability to retain andhattthese
employees could adversely affect our business atndef operating results.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Commen

None.

Item 3. Legal Proceeding:

We are involved in certain legal, regulatory, adstiative and environmental proceedings beforeousri
courts, arbitration panels and governmental agsremacerning matters arising in the ordinary coofdasusiness.
These proceedings include certain contract dispetesronmental reviews and investigations, auditgliries from
various regulators, and pending judicial matters. &&nnot predict the final disposition of such pextings. We
regularly review legal matters and record provisifor claims that are considered probable of [dks. resolution c
pending proceedings is not expected to have a rabédiect on our operations or financial statensantthe period
they are resolved.

In February 2008, DTE Energy was named as onembapmately 24 defendant oil, power and coal conigs
in a lawsuit filed in a United States District CoUDTE Energy was served with process in March 200&
plaintiffs, the Native Village of Kivalina and Cityf Kivalina, which are home to approximately 4Gbple in
Alaska, claim that the defendants’ business aaihave contributed to global warming and, assaltehigher
temperatures are damaging the local economy anthtethe island more vulnerable to storm activitythe fall and
winter. As a result, the plaintiffs are seeking daes of up to $400 million for relocation costsoagsted with
moving the village to a safer location, as wellaspecified attorney’s fees and expenses. On Ocidhe2009, the
U.S. District Court granted defendants’ motionsmissing all of plaintiffs’ federal claims in thesmon two
independent grounds: (1) the court lacks subjettemprisdiction to hear the claims because offibiical
guestion doctrine; and (2) plaintiffs lack standindring their claims. The court also dismisserglffs’ state law
claims because the court lacked supplemental jatisd over them after it dismissed the federaimkg the
dismissal of the state law claims was without piie. The plaintiffs have appealed to the U.S. €otiAppeals fo
the Ninth Circuit.

In July 2009, DTE Energy received a Notice of Vima/Finding of Violation (NOV/FOV) from the EPA
alleging, among other things, that five Detroit & power plants violated New Source Performaraedstrds,
Prevention of Significant Deterioration requirensrand Title V operating permit requirements urtderClean Air
Act. We believe that the plants identified by tHeAEhave complied with applicable regulations. Detieg upon th
outcome of our discussions with the EPA regardirgNlOV/FOV, the EPA
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could bring legal action against Detroit Edison. ¥éeld also be required to install additional pttin control
equipment at some or all of the power plants irstjoa, engage in Supplemental Environmental Program
and/or pay fines. We cannot predict the finaneigdact or outcome of this matter, or the timingtsfresolution.

For additional discussion on legal matters, seedl@P and 20 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements in Item 8 of this Report.
Item 4. Submission of Matters to a VVote of Security Hold¢

We did not submit any matters to a vote of secunitlgers in the fourth quarter of 2009.

Part Il

Item 5. Market for Registran’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters anduser Purchases of Equit
Securities

Our common stock is listed on the New York Stockliange, which is the principal market for such lstdde
following table indicates the reported high and kales prices of our common stock on the Compdsipe of the
New York Stock Exchange and dividends paid peresf@areach quarterly period during the past twaye

Dividends
Paid

Year Quarter High Low per Share
2009

First $37.11 $23.3:  $ 0.53(

Seconc $32.4:  $27.3: $ 0.53(

Third $36.4€  $30.5¢ $ 0.53(

Fourth $44.9¢ $33.7¢ $ 0.53(
2008

First $45.3¢  $37.81 $ 0.53(

Seconc $44.82 $38.9t $ 0.53(

Third $44.97 $38.7¢ $ 0.53(

Fourth $40.92 $27.8. $ 0.53(

At December 31, 2009, there were 165,400,045 sludiresr common stock outstanding. These shares were
held by a total of 78,903 shareholders of record.

Our Bylaws nullify Chapter 7B of the Michigan Busss Corporation Act (Act). This Act regulates shatder
rights when an individual's stock ownership reach@% of a Michigan corporation’s outstanding shakes
shareholder seeking control of the Company caregpiire our Board of Directors to call a meetingdte on issues
related to corporate control within 10 days, gsudtited by the Act.

We paid cash dividends on our common stock of $8difon in 2009, $344 million in 2008, and $364 liwh
in 2007. The amount of future dividends will depe&mdour earnings, cash flows, financial conditiod ather
factors that are periodically reviewed by our Boaf®irectors. Although there can be no assurangesanticipate
paying dividends for the foreseeable future.

See Note 14 of the Notes to Consolidated Finaigtatements in Item 8 of this Report for informatam
dividend restrictions.

All of our equity compensation plans that provide the annual awarding of stock-based compenshtor
been approved by shareholders. See Note 22 ofdtesNo Consolidated Financial Statements in Iteshit8is
Report for additional detail.
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Number of Securities

Remaining Available For
Future Issuance Under Equity
Compensation Plans

Plans approved by sharehold

5,593,39.

$40.5(

UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer andildted Purchasers

4,078,301

The following table provides information about qurchases of equity securities that are registeyetie

Company pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchangddkdhe year ended December 31, 2009:

Number
of Shares
Purchased as

Maximum Dollar

Value that May

Average Part of Publicly Yet Be

Number of Price Announced Average Purchased Undel

Shares Paid per Plans or Price Paid the Plans or

Purchased(1 Share(1 Programs(2) per Share(2 Programs(2)
01/01/09— 01/31/09 — — — — $ 822,895,62
02/01/09— 02/28/09 — — — — 822,895,62
03/01/09— 03/31/09 — — — — 822,895,62
04/01/09— 04/30/09 — — — — 822,895,62
05/01/09— 05/31/09 — — — — 822,895,62
06/01/09— 06/30/09 — — — — 822,895,62
07/01/09— 07/31/09 — — — — 822,895,62
08/01/09— 08/31/09 25,00  $35.01 — — 822,895,62
09/01/09— 09/30/09 — — — — 822,895,62
10/01/09— 10/31/09 — — — — 822,895,62
11/01/09— 11/30/09 — — — — 822,895,62
12/01/09— 12/31/09 — — — — —

Total 25,00( —

(1) Represents shares of common stock purchased apémemarket to provide shares to participants unaeous
employee compensation and incentive programs. Th@shases were not made pursuant to a publicly

announced plan or progra

(2) In May 2007, the DTE Energy Board of Directors awiked the repurchase of up to $850 million of coznm
stock through 2009. During 2009, no repurchasemafmon stock were made under this authorization tha

expired on December 31, 20(
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Annual Return Percentage
Years Ending December

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
477 17.6¢€ (5.05 (14.37) 30.0¢
491 15.7¢ 5.4¢ (37.00) 26.4¢
17.0¢ 16.7¢ 10.8¢ (24.3) 20.9:
Base Indexed Returns
Period Years Ending December
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
10C 104.77 123.2¢ 117.07 100.2%8 130.4(
10C 104.9: 121.4¢ 128.1¢ 80.7¢ 102.1
10C 117.0¢ 136.6: 151.47 114.6( 138.5¢
Comparison of Cumulative
Five Year Total Retumn
£
\;’—.‘/{-“' Fan
T T T I LI I
2004 2005 2065 2007 2008 2000
—{= DTE Energy Company

2 S&P 500 Index

=0 S&P 300 Multi-Unilities Index
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Iltem 6. Selected Financial Dat:

The following selected financial data should bedregaconjunction with the accompanying Management’s
Discussion and Analysis in Item 7 of this Repo &totes to the Consolidated Financial Statemeniteim 8 of this

Report.
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
(in Millions, except per share amounts

Operating Revenues $ 8014 $9,32¢ $847t $8151 $ 8,09/
Net Income Attributable to DTE Energy Company

Income from continuing operations( $ 532 $ 52 $ 787 $ 38 $ 27z

Discontinued operatior — 20 184 43 26¢

Cumulative effect of accounting chan — — — 1 3
Net Income Attributable to DTE Energy Compse $ 532 $ 546 $ 971 $ 43z $ 537
Diluted Earnings Per Common Share

Income from continuing operatiol $ 324 $ 322 $ 461 $ 21t $ 154

Discontinued operatior — A2 1.0¢ .24 1.52

Cumulative effect of accounting chanc — — — .01 (.01)
Diluted Earnings Per Common Shi $ 324 $ 33/ $ 56 $ 24z $ 3.0%
Financial Information

Dividends declared per share of common s $ 21z $ 212 $ 21z $ 207t $ 2.0¢€

Total asset $24,19¢ $24,59( $23,74. $23,78¢ $23,33¢

Long-term debt, including capital leas $737C $ 7,741 $6,971 $7.47¢ $ 7,08C

Shareholder equity $627¢ $599¢ $585: $584¢ $ 576¢

(1) 2007 amounts include $580 million after-tax gaintloe Antrim sale transaction and $210 million aftet losse
on hedge contracts associated with the Antrim 28188 amounts include $80 million after-tax gaintoa sale
of a portion of the Barnett shale properties. See=NO0 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemgnitem 8
of this Report
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Item 7. Managemen's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition drResults of Operation
OVERVIEW

DTE Energy is a diversified energy company with@@@erating revenues in excess of $8 billion aner ov
$24 billion in assets. We are the parent comparyatfoit Edison and MichCon, regulated electric gad utilities
engaged primarily in the business of providing &leity and natural gas sales, distribution andaie services
throughout southeastern Michigan. We operate faargy-related non-utility segments with operatitmeughout
the United States.

The following table summarizes our financial result

2009 2008 2007
(in Millions, except earnings

per share)
Income from continuing operatiol $53E $531 $791
Diluted earnings per common share from continuipgrations $3.24 $3.22 $4.61]
Net income attributable to DTE Energy Compi $532 $54€ $971
Diluted earnings per common shi $3.24 $3.3¢ $5.6¢

The decrease in 2009 Net income attributable to Bmergy from 2008 was primarily due to the $80 il
after-tax gain recorded in the Unconventional Galfction segment on the 2008 sale of a portiddashett shale
properties, partially offset by higher earningshia Electric Utility and Energy Trading segmenteeTecrease in
Net income attributable to DTE Energy in 2008 fra@07 was primarily due to $370 million in net incemesulting
from the $580 million after-tax gain on the 200%gaf the Antrim shale gas exploration and prodarchusiness,
partially offset by $210 million after-tax lossexognized on related hedges, including recogndfaamounts
previously recorded in accumulated other comprakieriscome during 2007.

The items discussed below influenced our currerarfcial performance and/or may affect future result

 Impacts of national and regional economic condiji

- Effects of weather on utility operatior

« Collectibility of accounts receivable on utility etions;
 Impact of regulatory decisions on utility operasg

« N on-utility operations

» Capital investments, including required renewabtergy-efficiency, environmental, reliability-reat and
other costs; an

» Environmental matter:

Reference in this report to “we,” “us,” “our,” “Cqmany” or “DTE” are to DTE Energy and its subsidéei
collectively.
UTILITY OPERATIONS

Our Electric Utility segment consists of Detroiti&ah, which is engaged in the generation, purchase,
distribution and sale of electricity to approximgt2.1 million customers in southeastern Michigan.

Our Gas Utility segment consists of MichCon andz&its. MichCon is engaged in the purchase, storage,
transmission, distribution and sale of naturaltgaspproximately 1.2 million customers throughotthgan.
Citizens distributes natural gas in Adrian, Michiga approximately 17,000 customers.
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Impact of National and Regional Economic Conditior

Revenues from our utility operations follow the momic cycles of the customers we serve. Unfavorable
national and regional economic trends have resifteeduced demand for electricity and naturaligasur service
territory with corresponding declines in our revesu

2009 2008 2007
(in Millions)
Revenues
Detroit Edisor $4,71¢  $4,87¢ $4,90(
MichCon 1,78¢ 2,152 1,87¢

During 2009, Detroit Edison experienced decreasasles, predominantly in the industrial class, tana lesse
extent in the residential and commercial classadighly offset by higher interconnection salescMCon’s revenue
were lower due primarily to lower natural gas c@std customer conservation. We expect to minintiearpacts
of declines in average customer usage through atmyylmechanisms which will decouple our revenwelefrom
sales volumes. We expect to be impacted by thdectrgds in the domestic automotive and steel inghssénd the
timing and level of recovery in the national andiomal economies. Direct and indirect effects aftfar automotive
and other industrial plant closures could havegaitant impact on the results of Detroit Edisés. discussed
further below, deteriorating economic conditionpaut our ability to collect amounts due from owodlic and gas
customers and drive increased thefts of electraviy natural gas. In the face of these economiditions, we are
actively managing our cash, capital expenditurest structure and liquidity to maintain our finaadcstrength.

Collectibility of Accounts Receivable on Utility @pations

Although lower than peak levels in 2008, both ti# continue to experience high levels of pastreégeivable
primarily attributable to economic conditions. Guarvice territories continue to experience higlelswf
unemployment, underemployment and low income haaldshhome foreclosures and a lack of adequatdsiefe
assistance for low-income customers. Despite thegueconomic conditions, total arrears were reduturing
2009 in our electric and gas utilities. We havestaictions to manage the level of past due receisaincluding
increasing customer disconnections, contracting watlection agencies and working with Michiganicils and
others to increase the share of low-income fundifarated to our customers.

2009 2008 2007

(in Millions)
Uncollectible Expense
Detroit Edisor $78 $87 $65
MichCon 93 12€ 70

$171  $21%  $13E

The MPSC has provided for an uncollectible expérazking mechanism for MichCon since 2005. The
uncollectible expense tracking mechanism enableh@®@bn to recover or refund 90 percent of the diffiee
between the actual uncollectible expense for eaah gnd $37 million after an annual reconciliajppoceeding
before the MPSC.

The January 2010 MPSC electric rate order providedn uncollectible expense tracking mechanism for
Detroit Edison. The uncollectible expense trackimechanism enables Detroit Edison to recover omnigefu
80 percent of the difference between the actuabliextible expense for each year and $66 millideradn annual
reconciliation proceeding before the MPSC.

The bankruptcies of General Motors Corporation (@M Chrysler LLC (Chrysler) did not have a sigrafit
impact to our uncollectible expense in 2009.
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Impact of Regulatory Decisions on Utility Operatisi

On January 11, 2010, the MPSC issued an ordertimiD&dison’s January 26, 2009 rate case filinge T
MPSC approved an annual revenue increase of $21idmor a 4.8% increase in Detroit Edison’s annalenue
requirement for 2010. Included in the approveddase in revenues was a return on equity of 11% @xpected
49% equity and 51% debt permanent capital struc&iree the final rate relief ordered was less tha@Companys
self-implemented rate increase of $280 million effe on July 26, 2009, the MPSC ordered refundsHe period
the self-implemented rates were in effect. Detaiison has recorded a refund liability of $27 roiiliat
December 31, 2009 representing the 2009 portigheoéstimated refund due customers, including ésteiThe
MPSC ordered Detroit Edison to file a refund plgmApril 1, 2010.

Other key aspects of the MPSC order include tHeviahg:

« Continued progress toward correcting the existatg structure to more accurately reflect the aatast of
providing service to business customi

« Continued application of an adjustment mechanisnkfectric Choice sales that reconciles actualarst
choice sales with a base customer choice salekde®e586 GWh:;

» Continued application of adjustment mechanismsacktexpenses associated with restoration costsr(st
and non-storm related expenses) and line cleamxmenses. Annual reconciliations will be requirethg a
base expense level of $117 million and $47 milli@spectively. The change in base expense level was
applied retroactive to the July 26, 2009 -implementation date

< Implementation of a pilot Revenue Decoupling Medbiam that will compare actual (non-weather
normalized) sales per customer with the base palesustomer level established in this case fop#reod
February 1, 2010 to January 31, 2011;

« Implementation of an Uncollectible Expense Trackitgchanism, based on a $66 million expense levidh,
an 80/20 percent sharing of the expenses abovelawiithe base amount. The Uncollectible Expenses
Tracking Mechanism was implemented retroactivénéoduly 26, 2009 seimplementation date

MichCon filed a general rate case on June 9, 2@38don a 2008 historical test year. The filindwiite
MPSC requested a $193 million, or 11.5 percentameincrease in MichCamannual revenues for a 2010 proje
test year. The requested $193 million increasewemues is required to recover the increased asstsiated with
increased investments in net plant and workingtag@n increase in the base level of the uncaliEcexpense
tracking mechanism and the cost of natural gas pnharily due to economic conditions in Michigaales
reductions due to customer conservation and tinel toé warmer weather on MichCon’s market, and iasieg
operating costs, largely due to inflation. Pursuarthe October 2008 Michigan legislation, andgk&lement in
MichCon'’s last base gas sale case, MichCon selfemented $170 million of its requested annual iaseson
January 1, 2010. This increase will remain in plaeg! a final order is issued by the MPSC, whistekpected in
June 2010, subject to refund. See Note 12 of tHed\Nio Consolidated Financial Statements in IteshtBis Report.

NON-UTILITY OPERATIONS

We have significant investments in non-utility messes. We employ disciplined investment critehianv
assessing opportunities that leverage our assdéts,and expertise. Specifically, we invest ingeted energy
markets with attractive competitive dynamics whaesaningful scale is in alignment with our risk plefWe
expect growth opportunities in the Gas StorageRipdlines and Power and Industrial Projects seggrianthe
future. Expansion of these businesses will alsoltr@s our ability to further diversify geographita

Gas Storage and Pipelines owns partnership ingeiresivo natural gas storage fields and two instest
pipelines serving the Midwest, Ontario and Northeaarkets. Much of the growth in demand for natgid is
expected to occur in the Mid-Atlantic and New Emglaegions. Forecasts indicate that these regidhseguire
incremental gas storage and pipeline infrastrudturaeet demand growth. Our Vector and
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Millennium pipelines are well-positioned to providecess routes and low-cost expansion optionstetmarkets.

Our Unconventional Gas Production business is esdjagnatural gas exploration, development and yortioin
within the Barnett shale in north Texas. We corgitmdevelop our holdings in the western portiothef Barnett
shale and to seek opportunities for additional rimagon of select properties within our Barnetakhholdings,
when conditions are appropriate. Due to economiglitions and low natural gas prices during the yearchose to
do minimal lease acquisitions and reduce the nummbeew wells this year. However, we continue talaate
leasing opportunities in active development aradbhé Barnett shale to optimize our existing pdidfo

Power and Industrial Projects is comprised prirgasflprojects that deliver energy and products semtices to
industrial, commercial and institutional customgmgyvide coal transportation and marketing; antledettricity
from biomass-fired energy projects. This busineggrent provides services using project assetslydoaated on
or near the customers’ premises in the steel, antige) pulp and paper, airport and other industiRenewable
energy, environmental and economic trends areingegtowth opportunities. The increasing numbestafes with
renewable portfolio standards and energy efficiemeyndates provides the opportunity to market thpeeise of the
Power and Industrial Projects segment in landéB,gon-site energy management, waste-wood poweraj&m,
and other related services.

Energy Trading focuses on physical and financiatgroand gas marketing and trading, structured &etiens,
enhancement of returns from DTE Energy’s assefgmrt and optimization of contracted natural ggsefine
transportation and storage, and power transmissidrgenerating capacity positions. Energy Tradisg provides
natural gas, power and ancillary services to varigtilities which may include the management obaisged storag
and transportation contracts on the customers’lbeha

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Synthetic Fuel

The Synthetic Fuel business was presented as atilibtpsegment through the third quarter of 20DLie to the
expiration of synfuel production tax credits at #rel of 2007, the Synthetic Fuel business ceasehtipns and we
classified as a discontinued operation as of Deee®b, 2007.

CAPITAL INVESTMENTS

We anticipate significant capital investments dgrihe next three years concentrated primarily itr&ie

Edison.
201(-2012
(in Billions)
Capital Investments
Detroit Edisor $3.0— 3.4
MichCon 0.4—0.t
Non-Utility 0.6—0.¢
$4.0—4.€

Our utility businesses require significant capitelestments each year in order to maintain andargthe
reliability of their asset bases, including powengration plants, distribution systems, storagddiand other
facilities and fleets. In addition, Detroit Edisenhvestments (excluding investments in new baad-fgeneration
capacity, if any) will be driven by renewable intrasnt and environmental controls expenditures. Ve f seek
regulatory approval to include these capital exjtenes within our regulatory rate base consisteith ywrior
treatment. Non-utility investments are expectedprily in continued investment in gas storage apeélme assets
and renewable opportunities in the Power and Im@$trojects businesses.
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ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

We are subject to extensive environmental regula#ialditional costs may result as the effects afous
substances on the environment are studied and goeatal regulations are developed and implemedtetial
costs to comply could vary substantially. We expeatontinue recovering environmental costs relabeatility
operations through rates charged to our customers.

Air — Detroit Edison is subject to the EPA ozone transand acid rain regulations that limit power plant
emissions of sulfur dioxide and nitrogen oxidesic8i2005, EPA and the State of Michigan have isadedional
emission reduction regulations relating to ozoires particulate, regional haze and mercury airytih. The new
rules will lead to additional controls on fossilkefad power plants to reduce nitrogen oxide, sulfaxide and
mercury emissions. Further, additional rulemakiagsexpected over the next few years which cowddire
additional controls for sulfur dioxide, nitrogenidas and hazardous air pollutants. It is not pdssdoquantify the
impact of those expected rulemakings at this time.

In July 2009, DTE Energy received a Notice of Vima/Finding of Violation (NOV/FOV) from the EPA
alleging, among other things, that five Detroit & power plants violated New Source Performaraedstrds,
Prevention of Significant Deterioration requirensrand Title V operating permit requirements urtderClean Air
Act. We believe that the plants identified by tHeAEhave complied with applicable regulations. Detieg upon th
outcome of our discussions with the EPA regardirgghOV/FOV, the EPA could bring legal action agaibstroit
Edison. We could also be required to install addii pollution control equipment at some or altled power plants
in question, engage in Supplemental Environmentagfams, and/or pay fines. We cannot predict thanftial
impact or outcome of this matter, or the timingtsfresolution.

Water —n response to an EPA regulation, Detroit Edisareégiired to examine alternatives for reducing the
environmental impacts of the cooling water intatkactures at several of its facilities. Based amribsults of
studies, some of which have already been complbtddnore are expected to be conducted over thiesesrral
years, Detroit Edison may be required to performemnitigation activities, including the possiblstallation of
additional control technologies to reduce the emvinental impact of the intake structures. Howeaelanuary 200
circuit court decision remanded back to the EPAess\provisions of the federal regulation, resgjtin a delay in
complying with the regulation. In 2008, the U.Spfme Court agreed to review the remanded costfibenalysis
provision of the rule and in April 2009 upheld ERAIse of this provision in determining best avadabchnology
for reducing environmental impacts. Concurrentiy EPA continues to develop a revised rule, a dfafthich is
expected to be published by summer 2010. The ERAulsa proposed an information collection reque$iegin a
review of steam electric effluent guidelines. Ihi possible at this time to quantify the impaxtthese developing
requirements.

Manufactured Gas Plant (MGP) and Other Sites?rier to the construction of major interstate nakgas
pipelines, gas for heating and other uses was raatured locally from processes involving coal, cokeil. The
facilities, which produced gas for heating and ptises, have been designated as MGP sites. Géy bitins, or
previously owned, fifteen such former MGP sitestrBie Edison owns, or previously owned, three formksP
sites. In addition to the MGP sites, we are alsthénprocess of cleaning up other sites where ouintion is
present as a result of historical and ongoingtytilperations. These other sites include an engidessh storage
facility, electrical distribution substations, gaipelines, and underground and aboveground stdeadelocations.
Cleanup activities associated with these sitesheiltonducted over the next several years.

Landfill — Detroit Edison owns and operates a permittedreraged ash storage facility at the Monroe Power
Plant to dispose of fly ash from the coal fired gowlant. Detroit Edison performed an engineeringlysis in 2009
and identified the need for embankment side slepairs and reconstruction. The results of the exgging study
show that the estimated cost to perform the embankmepairs are $17 million which we expect to inover the
next four years.

The EPA has expressed its intentions to developfederal regulations for coal ash under the authofithe
Resources Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA)ob@sed regulation is expected in the first
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quarter of 2010. Among the options EPA is currentipsidering, is a ruling that may designate cehblas a
“Hazardous Wasteas defined by RCRA. However, agencies and legigatbave urged EPA to regulate coal as
a non-hazardous waste. If EPA were to designateasbeas a hazardous waste, the agency could appig, or all,
of the disposal and reuse standards that havedpgied to other existing hazardous wastes. Sontieeafegulatory
actions currently being contemplated could haveatenal adverse impact on our operations and filshposition
and the rates we charge our customers.

Global Climate Change

Climate regulation and/degislation is being proposed and discussed withénU.S. Congress and the EPA.
June 26, 2009, the U.S. House of Representatiwesegdahe American Clean Energy and Security ActH8£).
The ACESA includes a cap and trade program thatdvetart in 2012 and provides for costs to emiegtouse
gases. Despite action by the Senate EnvironmemtaPablic Works Committee to pass a similar butersiringent
bill in October 2009, full Senate action on a climhill is not expected before the spring of 20d@anwhile, the
EPA is beginning to implement regulatory actiondemthe Clean Air Act to address emission of greesk gases.
Pending or future legislation or other regulatoeti@ns could have a material impact on our openatiand financial
position and the rates we charge our customersadispnclude expenditures for environmental equiprbeyond
what is currently planned, financing costs reldateddditional capital expenditures and the purclodigamission
allowances from market sources. We would seekdover these incremental costs through increased dtarged
to our utility customers. Increased costs for epgngduced from traditional sources could alsoease the
economic viability of energy produced from reneveadhd/or nuclear sources and energy efficienciathies and
the development of market-based trading of carbifsets providing business opportunities for oulitytand non-
utility segments. It is not possible to quantifesle impacts on DTE Energy or its customers atithis.

See Notes 12 and 20 of the Notes to ConsolidateahEial Statements in Iltem 8 of this Report anchétd and
2 Business and Properties.
OUTLOOK

The next few years will be a period of rapid chafageDTE Energy and for the energy industry. Ouoist
utility base, combined with our integrated nonitytibperations, position us well for long-term gt

Looking forward, we will focus on several areas thha expect will improve future performance:

« continuing to pursue regulatory stability and irtwesnt recovery for our utilitie:

« managing the growth of our utility asset be

< enhancing our cost structure across all businegaeets;

* managing cash, capital and liquidity to maintairingprove our financial strengt

* improving Electric and Gas Utility customer satcdfan; and

« investing in businesses that integrate our assetd$eaerage our skills and experti

We will continue to pursue opportunities to grow businesses in a disciplined manner if we canrgecu
opportunities that meet our strategic, financial a8k criteria.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following sections provide a detailed discusgibthe operating performance and future outlobdur

segments.
2009 2008 2007
(in Millions)
Net Income Attributable to DTE Energy by Segment:
Electric Utility $37€ $331 $317
Gas Utility 80 85 70
Gas Storage and Pipelin 49 38 34
Unconventional Gas Production| 9 84 (217)
Power and Industrial Projec 31 40 49
Energy Trading 75 42 32
Corporate & Other(1 (70)  (99) 50z
Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations:
Utility 45€  41€ 387
Non-utility 14¢€ 204 (102
Corporate & Othe (70) (99 502
532  52€ 787
Discontinued Operatior — 20 184
Net Income Attributable to DTE Energy Compe $532 $54€ $971

(1) 2008 net income of the Unconventional Gas Prodoc@gment resulted principally from the gain ongake of
a portion of our Barnett shale properties. 2007a&d resulted principally from the recognitionlagses on
hedge contracts associated with the Antrim satesaetion. 2007 net income of the Corporate & Olagrment
resulted principally from the gain recognized oe Antrim sale transaction. See Note 10 of the Ntmt¢ke
Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of Report.

ELECTRIC UTILITY
Our Electric Utility segment consists of Detroiti&ah.

Electric Utility results are discussed below:

2009 2008 2007
(in Millions)
Operating Revenue $4,71¢  $4,87¢  $4,90(
Fuel and Purchased Pov 1,491 1,77¢ 1,68¢
Gross Margir 3,22z 3,09¢ 3,21¢
Operation and Maintenan 1,27 1,322 1,42z
Depreciation and Amortizatic 844 743 764
Taxes Other Than Incon 20t 232 2717
Asset (Gains) Losses, Reserves and Impairments (2 (1) 8
Operating Incom 89¢ 80C 748
Other (Income) and Deductio 29t 283 277
Income Tax Provisio 22¢ 18€ 14¢
Net Income Attributable to DTE Energy Compe $ 37¢ $ 331 $ 317
Operating Income as a Percent of Operating Reve 19% 16% 15%
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Gross margirincreased $127 million during 2009 and decreasd® $dillion in 2008. The following table
displays changes in various gross margin componelasgve to the comparable prior period:

2009 2008
(in Millions)

December 2008 rate ord $ 80 $ —
Securitization bond and tax surcharge rate incr 62 —
July 2009 rate seimplementation, net of refur 93 —
Energy Optimization and Renewable Energy surch 54 —
April 2008 expiration of show cause rate decre 25 46
Weathel (66) (37
Reduction in customer demand and of 121y (129
Increase (decrease) in gross mal $127  $(11§

2009 2008 2007

(in Thousands of MWh)
Electric Sales

Residentia 14,62t 15,49: 16,147
Commercial 18,20( 18,92( 19,33:
Industrial 9,922 13,08¢ 13,33¢
Other 3,22¢ 3,21¢ 3,30(
4597¢ 50,71¢ 52,11%
Interconnection sales(. 5,15¢ 3,58: 3,58
Total Electric Sale 51,13: 54,29¢ 55,70«
Electric Deliveries
Retail and Wholesal 4597¢ 50,71¢ 52,11%
Electric Customer Choice, including self generdr 1,47 1,457 2,23¢
Total Electric Sales and Deliveri 47,45: 52,17° 54,35¢

(1) Represents power that is not distributed by DeEdison.

(2) Includes deliveries for self generators who havelpased power from alternative energy suppliers to
supplement their power requiremer
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Power Generated and Purchase 2009 2008 2007
(in Thousands of MWh)

Power Plant Generatic

Fossil 40,59t 74% 41,25: 71% 42,35¢ 72%

Nuclear 7,40¢ 14 9,61: 17 8,314 14

48,00 88 50,867 88 50,67: 86

Purchased Powt 6,49t 12 6,871 12 8,42 14
System Outpu 54,49¢ 10(% 57,74« 10(% 59,09t 10C(%
Less Line Loss and Internal U (3,369 (3,449 (3,397
Net System Outpt 51,13 54,29¢ 55,70«
Average Unit Cost ($/MWh)
Generation(1 $ 18.2( $ 17.9¢ $ 15.8¢
Purchased Powt $ 37.7¢ $ 69.5( $ 62.4(
Overall Average Unit Cos $ 20.57 $ 24.0% $ 22.47

(1) Represents fuel costs associated with power pl

Operation and maintenan@xpense decreased $45 million in 2009 and decreéimillion in 2008. The
decrease in 2009 was primarily due to $71 millimnf continuous improvement initiatives and othesteeduction
resulting in lower contract labor and outside sssiexpense, information technology and other stqfénses,
$14 million of lower employee benefit-related expes, lower storm expenses of $12 million, $9 millod reduced
uncollectible expenses and $6 million of reducedhteaance activities, partially offset by highenpmn and healt
care costs of $54 million and $14 million of eneaptimization and renewable energy expenses. Toeedse in
2008 was due primarily to lower information systamplementation costs of $60 million, lower empleyeenefit-
related expenses of $45 million and $29 milliomiroontinuous improvement initiatives resultingomver contract
labor and outside services expense, informatiomielogy and other staff expenses, partially offsehigher
uncollectible expenses of $22 million.

Depreciation and amortizatioexpense increased $101 million in 2009 due pripaoila higher depreciable
base and increased amortization of regulatory sisset decreased $21 million in 2008 due primaailgi¢creased
amortization of regulatory assets.

Taxes other than inconveere lower by $27 million due primarily to a $30llion reduction in property tax
expense due to refunds received in settlementpdalp of assessments for prior years. Taxes dedt&dd million
in 2008 due to the Michigan Single Business TaxT(5&pense in 2007, which was replaced with thehligian
Business Tax (MBT) in 2008. The MBT is accountedificthe Income Tax provision.

Outlook — Unfavorable national and regional economic teehave resulted in reduced demand for electricity
in our service territory and continued high leviel®ur uncollectible accounts receivable. The magid of these
trends will be driven by the impacts of the chadies in the domestic automotive industry and thénginand level o
recovery in the national and regional economieg Jdnuary 2010 MPSC rate order, provided for anligatible
expense tracking mechanism and a revenue decoupkefanism will assist in mitigating these impacts.

To address the challenges of the national and magjeEconomies, we continue to move forward in dfores to
improve the operating performance and cash flo@etfoit Edison. We continue to favorably resolvéstanding
regulatory issues, many of which were addressedibligan legislation. We expect that our planneghgicant
environmental and renewable expenditures will tasutarnings growth. Looking forward, we face ditdhial
issues, such as higher levels of capital spendivlgtility in prices for coal and other commoditi@svestment
returns and changes in discount rate assumptidmsnafit plans and health care costs, and uncgrtafdegislative
or regulatory actions regarding climate change.e®feect to continue
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an intense focus on our continuous improvementtsfto improve productivity, remove waste and daseeour
costs while improving customer satisfaction.

GAS UTILITY
Our Gas Utility segment consists of MichCon andz€its.

Gas Utility results are discussed below:

2009 2008 2007
(in Millions)
Operating Revenue $1,78¢  $2,15.  $1,87¢
Cost of Ga: 1,057 1,37¢ 1,164
Gross Margir 731 774 711
Operation and Maintenan 41F 464 42¢
Depreciation and Amortizatic 107 10z 93
Taxes Other Than Incon 49 48 56
Asset (Gains) and Losses, I (18) (26) 3
Operating Incom 17¢ 18¢€ 13¢€
Other (Income) and Deductio 58 60 43
Income Tax Provisio 39 41 23
Net Income Attributable to DTE Energy Compe $ 8 $ 8 $ 7O
Operating Income as a Percent of Operating Reve 10% 9% 7%

Gross margirdecreased $43 million in 2009 and increased $6Bomiln 2008. The decrease in 2009 reflects
$28 million of lower revenues from the uncollecatitttacking mechanism, $15 million of additionaltlead stolen
gas, $12 million of continued customer conservagifiarts, $5 million of lower end user transpoutatrevenue,
$5 million of realized hedging losses, the effadtanfavorable weather of $4 million and reducde [@ayment
revenue of $4 million, partially offset by $22 riolh higher midstream transportation and storagernegs,
$5 million in energy optimization revenues and $i8iom higher appliance service revenues. The iasesin 2008
reflects $49 million from the uncollectible tracgimechanism, $15 million related to the impactsalfler weather,
$10 million favorable result of lower lost gas rgo@ed and higher valued gas received as compendati
transportation of third party customer gas, $7iomllof 2007 GCR disallowances, and $6 million oplégnce repair
revenue. The 2008 improvement was partially offise$19 million of lower storage services revenué an
$12 million from customer conservation and loweluvoes.

2009 2008 2007
(in Millions)
Gas Markets
Gas sale $1,44: $1,82¢ $1,53¢
End user transportatic 144 14z 14C
Intermediate transportatic 69 73 70
Storage and oth¢ 132 112 12¢

$1,78¢ $2,15: $1,87¢

Gas Markets (in Bcf)

Gas sale 137 14¢ 14¢
End user transportatic 124 122 132

261 271 28(
Intermediate transportatic 462 43¢ 39¢

724 70¢ 67¢
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Operation and maintenan@xpense decreased $49 million in 2009 and incre®3&danillion in 2008. The
decrease in 2009 was primarily due to $33 millibredluced uncollectible expenses, $15 million efdo employee
benefit-related expenses, $14 million from contimionprovement initiatives and other cost reductig@sulting in
lower contract labor and outside services expanfmamation technology and other staff expensegjaily offset
by higher health care expenses of $8 million andw#4on of energy optimization expenses. The 20@8ease is
primarily attributable to $56 million of higher upltectible expenses, partially offset by $14 mitlitsom continuou
improvement initiatives resulting in lower contréadbor and outside services expense, informatichnelogy and
other staff expenses and $14 million of reducedsipenand health care expenses. Uncollectible expemas higher
in 2008 due to an analysis of our greater thantyiday receivables that indicated a change in tixeofnicustomers
in that group and therefore an increased risk téction. The changes in uncollectible expensesabstantially
offset by changes in revenues from the uncolleetitdcking mechanism included in the gross marggiougsion.

Asset (gains) losses, rdecreased $8 million due to a lower gain on the shbase gas of $15 million and a
gain related to the sale of certain gathering andgssing assets. The 2008 increase of $23 millmsmdue
primarily to the sale of base gas.

Outlook —Unfavorable national and regional economic treraigelresulted in a decrease in the number of
customers in our service territory, customer coreg@n and continued high levels of theft and ulextible
accounts receivable. The magnitude of these traiiblse driven by the impacts of the challengeshe domestic
automotive industry and the timing and level ofoegry in the national and regional economies. Tineoliectible
tracking mechanism provided by the MPSC assistsifigating the continued pressure on accounts vabés.

To address the challenges of the national and mey@conomies, we continue to move forward in dfores to
improve the operating performance and cash flo@as Utility. We continue to resolve outstandingulatpry
issues. Looking forward, we face additional isssesh as volatility in gas prices, investment nesueind changes in
discount rate assumptions in benefit plans andineate costs. We expect to continue an intenagsfon our
continuous improvement efforts to improve produttivminimize lost and stolen gas, remove wastegeatease
our costs while improving customer satisfaction.

GAS STORAGE AND PIPELINES
Our Gas Storage and Pipelines segment consisty ofom-utility gas pipelines and storage businesses
Gas Storage and Pipelines results are discussed:bel

2009 2008 2007

(in Millions)
Operating Revenue $82 $71 $66
Operation and Maintenan 15 12 13
Depreciation and Amortizatic 5 5 6
Taxes Other Than Incon 2 3 3
Asset (Gains) and Losses, I — 1 (D)
Operating Incom 60 50 45
Other (Income) and Deductio 23) (12 @)
Income Tax Provisio 33 24 18
Net Income 50 38 34
Noncontrolling interes 1 — —
Net Income Attributable to DTE Enert $49 $38 $34

Net income attributable to DTE Energy increased iillion and $4 million in 2009 and 2008, respeetiv
The 2009 increase was driven by higher operatingmees resulting from increased capacity sold agloeh rates
from renewing storage contracts related to longytagreements. In addition, there were

41




WPD-6

Table of Contents Screening Data Part 1 of 2
Page 4026 of 9808

higher equity earnings from our investments in\flieetor and Millennium Pipelines, reflecting a fifatl year of
operations for Millennium. The 2008 increase is tlukigher storage revenues related to expansicapdcity and
higher other income primarily driven by higher dggarnings in the Vector and Millennium Pipelingartially
offset by a higher tax provision due to the MBT2D08.

Outlook —Our Gas Storage and Pipelines business expectatinge its steady growth plan. In 2009, an
additional 3 Bcf of storage capacity was placesdrvice. The Vector Pipeline Phase 2 expansionhwénilded
approximately 100 MMcf/day, was placed in servit®ictober 2009 and is supported by customers dadg#term
contracts. Millennium Pipeline was placed in-sesviit December 2008 and currently has nearly 85gpémaf its
capacity sold to customers under long-term corgrabe are also a 50 percent owner in the proposeehD
Gateway Pipeline. The Dawn Gateway Project is aesido initially transport 360,000 dth/d from ourdkigan
storage facilities to the Dawn Hub in Ontario, Gdaaand upon successful and timely regulatory afsbres
expected to be in service in the fourth quarter0201

UNCONVENTIONAL GAS PRODUCTION

Our Unconventional Gas Production business is esdjagnatural gas exploration, development and yortioin
within the Barnett shale in northern Texas. In J20@7, we sold our Antrim shale gas exploration prmaiuction
business in northern Michigan for gross proceedild?62 billion. In January 2008, we sold a pordmour Barnet
shale properties for gross proceeds of approxim&260 million. The properties sold included 75 BEproved
reserves on approximately 11,000 net acres indhe @rea of the Barnett shale. We recognized agjain
$128 million ($80 million after-tax) on the sale2008.

Unconventional Gas Production results are disculsekxiv:

2009 2008 2007

(in Millions)
Operating Revenue $31 $ 48 $(22¢
Operation and Maintenan 15 22 36
Depreciation, Depletion and Amortizati 16 12 22
Taxes Other Than Incon 1 1 8
Asset (Gains) and Losses, I 6 (120) 27
Operating Income (Los! @) 13z (321)
Other (Income) and Deductio 6 2 13
Income Tax Provision (Benefi (4 47 (1179
Net Income (Loss) Attributable to DTE Energy Comyp $09 $ 84 $(219)

Operating revenuedecreased $17 million in 2009 and increased $2TMémin 2008. The 2009 decrease is
result of lower commaodity prices, while producti@mained relatively flat. The 2008 increase wasgipially due ti
the impact of losses on 2007 financial contracas fiedged our price risk exposure related to exgeg&htrim gas
production and sales through 2013. Excluding thasich of the losses on the Antrim hedges, operaémngnues
decreased $47 million in 2008. The decreases wereipally due to lower natural gas sales volumes aesult of
our monetization initiatives, partially offset bigher commodity prices and higher gas and oil petidn on
retained wells.

Operation and maintenan@xpense decreased $7 million in 2009 due to operatiefficiencies and lower
costs for goods and services. The 2008 decregsamarily attributable to the sale of a portiontioé Barnett shale
in January 2008 and the Antrim sale in June 2007.

Asset (gains) and losses, detreased $126 in 2009 and increased $147 miti@®08. The 2009 decrease as
compared to 2008 was due to the gain of $128 mi(%80 million after-tax) on the 2008 sale of atjwor of our
Barnett shale properties and $2 million lower innegant in 2009 of expired or expiring leasehold poss that the
company does not intend to drill at current comrtyodiices. The increase in 2008 of $147 million wlas to the
gain on sale of Barnett shale core propertiesjgigroffset by $8 million
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of impairment losses primarily related to leasesioproved acreage that we did not anticipate dguadodue to
economic conditions.

Outlook —In the longer-term, we plan to continue to devedap holdings in the western portion of the Barnett
shale and to seek opportunities for additional rimaton of select properties within our asset bageen condition
are appropriate. Our strategy for 2010 is to mairgar focus on reducing operating expenses ariching
production volume. During 2010, we expect to imnaggbroximately $25 million to drill 10 to 15 new lgsand
achieve production of approximately 5 Bcfe of natgras, compared with 5 Bcfe in 2009.

POWER AND INDUSTRIAL PROJECTS

Power and Industrial Projects is comprised prirgasflprojects that deliver energy and utilitype products ar
services to industrial, commercial and institutionastomers; provide coal transportation servicesmaarketing;
and sell electricity from biomass-fired energy puat§.

Power and Industrial Projects results are discubsémiv:

2009 2008 2007

(in Millions)
Operating Revenue $661 $987 $1,24<
Operation and Maintenan 59:¢ 89¢ 1,14z
Depreciation and Amortizatic 40 34 41
Taxes other than Incon 9 12 13
Other Asset (Gains) and Losses, Reserves and Imeiais, Ne (6) 6 —
Operating Incom 25 36 47
Other (Income) and Deductio 1) (20 (11
Income Taxe!
Provision 5 18 18
Production Tax Credit (12 ()] (17)
(7) 11 7
Net Income 33 45 51
Noncontrolling interes 2 5 2
Net Income Attributable to DTE Energy Compe $31 $40 $ 49

Operating revenuedecreased $326 million in 2009 and $257 millio2@®8. The 2009 decrease is due
primarily to $111 million reduction in certain cagtfuctured transactions, $176 million of lowercprg and volume
of coal and emissions and $84 million of lower cdieenand, partially offset by a $107 million increas coal
related services. The 2008 decrease was primanilipuatable to $177 million of reductions in coedhsportation
and trading volumes and $28 million for the impafch customer electing to purchase coal directyfthe
supplier.

Operation and maintenan@xpense decreased $306 million in 2009 and $24¢bmih 2008. The 2009
decrease is due primarily to $111 million decraaseertain coal structured transactions and $64anibf lower
coke demand, $141 million of lower pricing and voks of coal and emissions and operating expenagmlly
offset by $75 million of higher coal related semsc The 2008 decrease mostly reflects $174 mifdower coal
transportation costs driven by reduced sales cosabivith a reduction in coal trading results.

Depreciation and amortizatioexpense increased $6 million in 2009 and decre$®gedillion in 2008. In 2007,
we announced our plans to sell a 50% interestiortiolio of select Power and Industrial Projeets.a result, the
assets and liabilities of the Projects were clastifis held for sale at that time and the Compaaged recording
depreciation and amortization expense relateddsetlassets. During the second quarter of 2008yaikron this
planned monetization was discontinued and the sisset liabilities of the Projects
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were no longer classified as held for sale. Deptém and amortization resumed in June 2008 whemskets were
reclassified as held and used.

Other assets (gains) losses, reserves and impateneetincreased $12 million in 2009 and expense decreased
$6 million in 2008. This variation in this itemdsie primarily to a loss recorded in 2008 of apprately
$19 million related to the valuation adjustmenttfoe cumulative depreciation and amortization upmassificatiol
of certain project assets as held and used, pariiset by gains attributable to the sale of ofeur coke battery
projects where the proceeds were dependent orefpteduction. Production at this coke battery waerating at
lower production volumes in 2009.

Other (income) and deductiomgere lower by $19 million in 2009 due primarilyh@her inter-company
interest associated with project construction anedaction in equity earnings in an investment goke battery.

Outlook — The stabilization in the U.S. economy is havangositive impact on our customers in the steel
industry and we expect a corresponding improvernmedémand for metallurgical coke and pulverized sogplied
to these customers for 2010. We supply onsite greggyices to the domestic automotive manufactusbis have
also experienced stabilized demand for autos. Gmgsid GM have emerged from Chapter 11 bankruptcy
protection. We have been in discussions with batbraakers and do not anticipate significant impazsnsite
energy services. Our onsite energy services wiitinae to be delivered in accordance with the tesfrleng-term
contracts. We continue to monitor developmentsig sector.

In 2010, we will continue to capture benefits frpneduction tax credits generated from our stealgtiy fuel
and our reduced emission fuel projects. We wilbddsegin to generate production tax credits fromreduced
emission fuel projects. In 2011, our existing Idegm rail transportation contract, which is at sategnificantly
below the current market, will expire and we aptite a decrease in transportatietated revenue of approximats
$120 million as a result. We will continue to wavkh suppliers and the railroads to promote seamc:competitiv:
access to coal to meet the energy requirementsrafustomers. Power and Industrial Projects wititowe to
leverage its extensive energy-related operating®apce and project management capability to devadiditional
energy projects to serve energy intensive industustomers. We will also continue to look for oppaities to
acquire energy projects and biomass fired gengratiojects for favorable prices.

ENERGY TRADING

Energy Trading focuses on physical and financialgroand gas marketing and trading, structured aetiens,
enhancement of returns from DTE Energy’s assefqgimrt and optimization of contracted natural ggsefine
transportation and storage, and power transmissidrgenerating capacity positions. Energy Tradisg provides
natural gas, power and ancillary services to varigtilities which may include the management obeksded storac
and transportation contracts on the customers’lbeha
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Energy Trading results are discussed below:

2009 2008 2007

(in Millions)
Operating Revenue $804 $1,38¢ $924
Fuel, Purchased Power and ( 603 1,23¢ 80¢€
Gross Margir 201 152 11¢
Operation and Maintenan 71 68 58
Depreciation and Amortizatic 5 5 5
Taxes Other Than Incon 3 2 1
Operating Incom 122 78 54
Other (Income) and Deductio 10 5 5
Income Tax Provision (Benefi 37 31 17
Net Income Attributable to DTE Energy Compse $7° $ 42 $ 32

Gross margirincreased $48 million in 2009 and $35 million iM080Overall, Operating Revenues and Fuel,
Purchased Power and Gas were impacted by a dednegae and power commodity prices in 2009 as coetht
2008. The $48 million increase in gross margin@02was due to increases in realized margins ofgié@n,
offset by decreases in unrealized margins of $2tlomi The $69 million increase in realized margwmas primarily
the result of increases in our gas trading stragegltiming-related increases in our gas storagdramsportation
optimization strategies. The $21 million decreaserirealized margins consisted of unfavorable tesidl
$58 million from our gas trading and gas marketnd origination strategies, partially offset byreeses of
$29 million in our power trading and timing-relat@sprovements of $8 million in our oil strategies.

The 2008 increase was due to higher unrealizedimaf@66 million offset by a decrease in realizedrgin of
$31 million. The increase in unrealized margindudes gains in our gas strategies and the abséi&39anillion in
mark-to-marketosses in June 2007 reflecting revisions of vatira@istimates for natural gas contracts. The dee
in realized margin was due to unfavorable resudl®&28 million primarily from our power marketing én
transmission optimization strategies, $34 millidruofavorability in our gas storage and full reguirents strategies
due to falling prices in 2008, offset by $31 mifliof improvement in our gas trading strategy.

Operation and maintenan@xpense increased $3 million and $10 million in2@6d 2008, respectively. The
2009 increase was due to higher payroll and ingemidbsts and commissions, partially offset by lowa@tractor
expense and allocated corporate costs. The 2008aise is due to higher payroll and incentive castsallocated
corporate costs.

Income tax provisiomcreased $6 million in 2009 due to an increasadome taxes resulting from higher
pretax income, partially offset by $10 million @fviorable tax-related adjustments primarily resglfiom the
settlement of federal income tax audits.

Outlook —Significant portions of the Energy Trading portéoiire economically hedged. The portfolio inclu
financial instruments, physical commodity contraansl gas inventory, as well as contracted natwasipgpeline
transportation and storage, and power transmissidrgeneration capacity positions. Energy Tradisg provides
power and ancillary services and natural gas tmwuarutilities which may include the managemerasgociated
storage and transport contracts on the customehgilb Most financial instruments and physical poesd gas
contracts are deemed derivatives, whereas proprigées inventory, power transmission, pipeline $portation and
certain storage assets are not derivatives. Asultreve will experience earnings volatility asidatives are
marked-to-market without revaluing the underlyiransderivative contracts and assets. Our stratetyy is
economically manage the price risk of these undeglpon-derivative contracts and assets with figui@rwards,
swaps and options. This results in gains and Idssesre recognized in different interim and at@gaounting
periods.
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See also the “Fair Value” section that follows.

CORPORATE & OTHER

Corporate & Other includes various holding compaagvities and holds certain non-utility debt amdegy-
related investments.

Factors impacting income:The 2009 net loss of $70 million decreased frbenrtet loss of $94 million in 2008
due to $34 million favorable tax-related adjustrsgmrimarily resulting from the settlement of fedén@ome tax
audits, $10 million lower inter-company interesperse and $9 million lower costs related to natgaal forward
contracts associated with the 2007 sale of theidrfdhale properties. These favorable variances pairtially
offset by a $10 million donation of cash and aJaéafor-sale securities to the DTE Energy Foundgat®10 million
resulting from a realignment of employee beneffiense from MichCon, $7 million increase in finarcfees,
$1 million increased impairment of investments arll million decrease in interest income. The 288&80ss of
$94 million was lower than the 2007 net income 5 million due to the 2007 gain on the sale ofAh&im shale
gas exploration and production business for appratély $900 million ($580 million after-tax).

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Synthetic Fuel

Due to the expiration of synfuel production taxditein 2007, the Synthetic Fuel business ceasetatipns
and was classified as a discontinued operatiorf Becember 31, 2007.

See Note 10 of the Notes to Consolidated Finagtatiements in Item 8 of this Report.

CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF ACCOUNTING CHANGES

Effective January 1, 2008, we adopted ASC 820 (SRAS157,Fair Value Measurements)The cumulative
effect adjustment upon adoption of ASC 820 reprieska $4 million increase to the January 1, 2008ruz of
retained earnings. See also the “Fair Value” sactio

Effective January 1, 2007, we adopted ASC 740 (FA8&pretation No. (FIN) 48\ccounting for Uncertaint
in Income Taxes — an interpretation of FASB Statéide. 109). The cumulative effect of the adoption of ASC
740 represented a $5 million reduction to the Jgnia2007 balance of retained earnings.

CAPITAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY
Cash Requirements

We use cash to maintain and expand our electriganditilities and to grow our non-utility businessretire
and pay interest on long-term debt and pay divideki¢e believe that we will have sufficient interaald external
capital resources to fund anticipated capital grerating requirements. In 2010, we expect that &ash operation
will be lower due to higher tax payments and wogk@apital requirements. We anticipate base levgitala
investments and expenditures for existing busiress2010 of up to $1.4 billion. The capital needlsur utilities
will increase due primarily to renewable and enaygtimization related expenditures. We incurredimmmental
expenditures of approximately $116 million in 20G0% we expect over $2.2 billion of future capitgbenditures
through 2019 to satisfy both existing and propas&d requirements. We plan to seek regulatory aghitovinclude
these capital expenditures within our regulatotg fEse consistent with prior treatment. Capitahsiing for growtl
of existing or new non-utility businesses will dageon the existence of opportunities that meetstrigt risk-return
and value creation criteria.

Debt maturing in 2010 totals approximately $66 liomil
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2009 2008 2007
(in Millions)
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash Flow From (Used Fc
Operating activities
Net income $ 535 $ 55z §$ 787
Depreciation, depletion and amortizat 1,02( 89¢ 92¢
Deferred income taxe 20¢ 34¢ 144
Gain on sale of nc-utility business — (12¢) (900
Gain on sale of synfuel and other assets, netanfded impairmen (10 (35) (259)
Working capital and othe 69 (78) 421

1,81¢ 1,55¢ 1,12¢

Investing activities

Plant and equipment expenditu— utility (960) (1,189 (1,035
Plant and equipment expenditu— nor-utility (75) (290 (269
Proceeds from sale of n-utility business — 258 1,262
Proceeds (refunds) from sale of synfuels and athset: 83 (27¢) 417
Restricted cash and other investme (112) (125) (50)
(1,069 (1,527) 33C

Financing activities
Issuance of lor-term debt 427 1,31( 50
Redemption of lon-term debr (48€) (44¢) (399
Repurchase of lor-term debt — (23¢) —
Shor-term borrowings, ne (417) (340 47
Issuance of common sto 35 — —
Repurchase of common sta — (16) (708
Dividends on common stock and otl (34¢) (359) (370
(789 (84) (1,46%)
Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equival $ (349 $ (48 $ (13

Cash from Operating Activities

A majority of our operating cash flow is provideg dur electric and gas utilities, which are sigrafitly
influenced by factors such as weather, electria@nsr Choice, regulatory deferrals, regulatory omtes,
economic conditions and operating costs.

Cash from operations totaling $1.8 billion in 200®&reased $260 million from the comparable 2008ope
The operating cash flow comparison primarily refidower working capital requirements and highdrineome
after adjusting for non-cash and non-operating stédepreciation, depletion and amortization, defétaxes and
gains on sales of assets).

Cash from operations totaling $1.6 billion in 2068reased $434 million from the comparable 2007ogkeiThe
operating cash flow comparison primarily reflecighier net income after adjusting for non-cash amt-operating
items (depreciation, depletion and amortizatioriexded taxes and gains on sales of assets), ahdbegments
received related to our synfuel program hedges.
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Cash from Investing Activitie:

Cash inflows associated with investing activities primarily generated from the sale of assetsleddsh
outflows are primarily generated from plant andipment expenditures. In any given year, we willddo realize
cash from under-performing or natrategic assets or matured fully valued assesit&apending within the utilit
business is primarily to maintain our generatiod distribution infrastructure, comply with enviroental
regulations and gas pipeline replacements. Cagphding within our non-utility businesses is fagoing
maintenance and expansion. The balance of notygpiending is for growth, which we manage veretdly. We
look to make investments that meet strict criteriterms of strategy, management skills, risks ratdrns. All new
investments are analyzed for their rates of retunth cash payback on a risk adjusted basis. Welleame discipline
in how we deploy capital and will not make investiiseunless they meet our criteria. For new busitiess, we
initially invest based on research and analysis.sWg with a limited investment, we evaluate ressahd either
expand or exit the business based on those reBuliay given year, the amount of growth capitdl bé determine
by the underlying cash flows of the Company wittiear understanding of any potential impact onavadit
ratings.

Net cash used for investing activities was appraxaly $1.1 billion in 2009, compared with net casked for
investing activities of $1.5 billion in 2008. Theange was primarily driven by reduced capital exjgenes by our
utility and non-utility businesses and the completdf refund payments to our synfuel partners 0680

Net cash used for investing activities increase® $illion in 2008, due primarily to the sale ofraAntrim
shale gas exploration and production business®7 2¢hich offset most of the capital expendituresrdythat
period, and the completion of synfuel partner refuim 2008.

Cash from Financing Activities

We rely on both short-term borrowing and long-téimancing as a source of funding for our capital
requirements not satisfied by our operations.

Our strategy is to have a targeted debt portfdemdb of fixed and variable interest rates and nitgtuwWe
continually evaluate our leverage target, whicbugently 50% to 52%, to ensure it is consisterihwiur objective
to have a strong investment grade debt rating. #We lcompleted a number of refinancings with theafbf
extending the average maturity of our long-termt@etnl strengthening our balance sheet. The extensithe
average maturity was accomplished at interest thtgdowered our debt costs.

Net cash used for financing activities was $789ionilin 2009, compared to net cash used for firgnci
activities of approximately $84 million for the sameriod in 2008. The change was primarily attable to lower
proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt.

Net cash used for financing activities decreased Billion in 2008 primarily related to the repuade of
common stock in 2007 and increased issuances gftknm debt.

Outlook

We expect cash flow from operations to increase thelong-term primarily as a result of growthrfrour
utilities and the non-utility businesses. We exggotvth in our utilities to be driven primarily lmew and existing
state and federal regulations that will resultddiional environmental and renewable energy inmesits which
will increase the base from which rates are detaechi Our non-utility growth is expected from adutitil
investments in energy projects as economic comditimprove.

We have been impacted by unfavorable national agimnal economic trends that have reduced demand fo
electricity in our service territory. We may be iagped by the delayed collection of underrecovesfesur PSCR
and GCR costs and electric and gas accounts réteiaa a result of MPSC orders. Energy pricesilkedylto be a
source of volatility with regard to working capitalquirements for the foreseeable future. We andirmaing our
efforts to identify opportunities to improve castwi through working capital initiatives and maimtaig flexibility
in the timing and extent of our long-term capitadjpcts.
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In April 2009, we completed an early renewal of $9illion of our syndicated revolving credit fatidis befor:
their scheduled expiration in October 2009. The Béwbillion two-year facility will expire in 2011ral has similar
covenants to the prior facility. A new two-year $60lion credit facility was completed in May 20@&d a new
one-year $70 million credit facility was completedJune 2009. We have a $925 million five-yearlfgcthat
expires in October 2010. We expect to pursue thewal of that facility before its expiration. Givearrent
conditions in the credit markets, we anticipate tha new facility will be similar to our April 2@0facility with
respect to such items as bank participation, dilocdevels and covenants. We are evaluating tleel b@ renew our
$70 million bi-lateral credit facility expiring idune 2010 which is used to support the issuantstefs of credit.
See Note 18 of Notes to Consolidated Financiak8tants in Item 8 of this Report.

As a result of losses experienced in the 2008 Girmmarkets, our benefit plan assets experienegdtive
returns, which have resulted in higher benefit€asid contributions in 2009 and potentially in fatyears relative
to the recent past. During 2009, our pension prahather postretirement benefit plans assets expesd positive
returns of approximately 20% and 22%, respectividlyring 2010, we expect to contribute up to $200iomi to our
pension plans and up to $130 million to our postrtent medical and life insurance benefit plans.

While the impact of continued market volatility atudmoil in the credit markets cannot be predicted,
believe we have sufficient operating flexibilitygsh resources and funding sources to maintain ateegmounts of
liquidity and to meet our future operating cash aapital expenditure needs. However, virtuallyodlbur
businesses are capital intensive, or require acoesapital, and the inability to access adequagstal could
adversely impact earnings and cash flows.

See Notes 12, 13, and 14 of the Notes to Conselidainancial Statements in Item 8 of this Report.

Contractual Obligations

The following table details our contractual obligat for debt redemptions, leases, purchase oldigatind
other long-term obligations as of December 31, 2009

2015
Contractual Obligations Total 2010 2011201z 2013201<¢ and Beyonc
(in Millions)

Long-term debt

Mortgage bonds, notes and ot $6,76¢ $ 52z $ 1,11¢ $ 1,112 $ 4,01f

Securitization bond 93¢ 14C 314 374 10t

Trust preferre-linked securitie: 28¢ — — — 28¢

Capital lease obligatior 76 14 21 18 23

Interest 5,762 492 822 687 3,762
Operating lease 20¢ 33 54 38 83
Electric, gas, fuel, transportation and storageipase

obligations(1) 4,64¢  2,51: 1,307 15¢ 671
Other lon¢-term obligations(2)(3)(4 29¢ 32 97 33 13€
Total obligations $18,98¢ $3,74¢ $ 3,73 $ 2421 $ 9,08/

(1) Excludes amounts associated with full requiremeatgracts where no stated minimum purchase volsme i
required.

(2) Includes liabilities for unrecognized tax benefits$81 million.
(3) Excludes other lor-term liabilities of $181 million not directly dedd from contracts or other agreeme

(4) At December 31, 2009, we met the minimum pensiowlifug levels required under the Employee Retirement
Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA) and the Pengtootection Act of 2006 for our define
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benefit pension plans. We may contribute more tharminimum funding requirements for our pensicangl
and may also make contributions to our benefitgkamd our postretirement benefit plans; howeveseh
amounts are not included in the table above as aodunts are discretionary. Planned funding leaeds
disclosed in the Critical Accounting Estimates mecof MD&A and in Note 21 of the Notes to Consaelidd
Financial Statements in Item 8 of this Rep

Credit Ratings

Credit ratings are intended to provide banks ampdalamarket participants with a framework for ccamipg the
credit quality of securities and are not a recomaiaginn to buy, sell or hold securities. Managenimieves that
our current credit ratings provide sufficient acctssthe capital markets. However, disruptionsimbanking and
capital markets not specifically related to us raffgct our ability to access these funding soutresause an
increase in the return required by investors.

As part of the normal course of business, Detrdis&n, MichCon and various non-utility subsidiaraéshe
Company routinely enter into physical or finangiadkttled contracts for the purchase and salecatrédity, natural
gas, coal, capacity, storage and other energyeckfaoducts and services. Certain of these costcacttain
provisions which allow the counterparties to redtiest the Company post cash or letters of credihé event that
the credit rating of DTE Energy is downgraded beiowestment grade. Certain of these contracts &irdit Edisor
and MichCon contain similar provisions in the evidnatt the credit rating of the particular utilitydowngraded
below investment grade. The amount of such colldtehich could be requested fluctuates based upommdity
prices and the provisions and maturities of theeulythg transactions and could be substantial. Algon a
downgrade below investment grade, we could hategtsl access to the commercial paper marketfaDdlk
Energy is downgraded below investment grade ourutibity businesses, especially the Energy Trading Power
and Industrial Projects segments, could be requgedstrict operations due to a lack of availdigjeidity. A
downgrade below investment grade could potentialiyease the borrowing costs of DTE Energy and its
subsidiaries and may limit access to the capitaketa. The impact of a downgrade will not affect ability to
comply with our existing debt covenants. While werently do not anticipate such a downgrade, wecapredict
the outcome of current or future credit rating agemeviews.

In May 2009, Standard & Poor’s Rating Group (StaddaPoor’s) revised the outlook on DTE Energy étsd
subsidiaries to negative from stable, and lowehedshort-term corporate credit and commercial pegtérgs for
DTE Energy, Detroit Edison and MichCon to A-3 fréwR. The revision was primarily due to concernsrove
Michigan’s economic climate. Moody’s Investors Seev(Moody’s) affirmed our existing short-term rags of
P-2. In August 2009, Moody’s upgraded the majooitgenior secured debt ratings of investment-gradalated
utilities by one notch as a result of revised nivtgtguidelines between senior secured debt ratingssenior
unsecured debt ratings. Both Detroit Edison’s anchi&don’s senior debt ratings were upgraded to ABfA3. In
January 2010, Standard & Poor’s raised its outmoPTE Energy back to stable and raised the sleom-tredit
ratings for DTE Energy, Detroit Edison and MichCmatk to A-2 from A-3. We have experienced an improent
in our ability to issue commercial paper sincergstoration of our short-term ratings. Short-teiwnrbwings,
principally in the form of commercial paper, progids with the liquidity needed on a daily basist Gammercial
paper program is supported by our unsecured diadiities. Potential instability in the credit nkats and any
lowering of ratings may impact future access todtmmercial paper markets, which may require wraw on our
back-up facilities.

50




WPD-6

Table of Contents Screening Data Part 1 of 2
Page 4035 of 9808

The following table shows our credit rating as deiaed by three nationally recognized credit ratggncies.
All ratings are considered investment grade anecathe value of the related securities.

Credit Rating Agency

Standard & Moody's Fitch

Entity Description Poor's Investors Service Ratings
DTE Energy Senior Unsecured

Debt BBB- Baa2 BBB

Commercial Pape A-2 P-2 F2
Detroit Edison Senior Secured

Debt A- A2 A-

Commercial Pape A-2 P-2 F2
MichCon Senior Secured

Debt BBB+ A2 BBB+

Commercial Pape A-2 P-2 F2

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith generally accepted accounting principleguiee that
management apply accounting policies and make astBrand assumptions that affect results of opastind the
amounts of assets and liabilities reported in tharicial statements. Management believes thatrdesalescribed
below require significant judgment in the applioatbf accounting policy or in making estimates argumptions i
matters that are inherently uncertain and that aienge in subsequent periods. Additional discussidhese
accounting policies can be found in the Notes tagotidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of thep®tt.

Regulation

A significant portion of our business is subjectegulation. This results in differences in the laggpion of
generally accepted accounting principles betwegulated and non-regulated businesses. Detroit Bdiad
MichCon are required to record regulatory assedisliabilities for certain transactions that woulavie been treated
as revenue or expense in non-regulated busindasese regulatory changes or changes in the cotiyeeti
environment could result in the discontinuanceh@f accounting treatment for regulatory assetsliabdities for
some or all of our businesses. Management beliéag<urrently available facts support the contthuse of
regulatory assets and liabilities and that all tatguy assets and liabilities are recoverable im#able in the
current rate environment.

See Note 12 of the Notes to Consolidated Finagtatiements in Item 8 of this Report.

Derivatives and Hedging Activities

Derivatives are generally recorded at fair valué simown as Derivative Assets or Liabilities in @ensolidate
Statements of Financial Position. Changes in thievédue of the derivative instruments are recogdiin earnings i
the period of change, unless the derivative mestsio defined conditions and qualifies as an éffechedge. The
normal purchases and normal sales exception req@neong other things, physical delivery in quégiexpected
to be used or sold over a reasonable period indhmal course of business. Contracts that are datsd as normal
purchases and normal sales are not recorded atfaie. Substantially all of the commaodity contsaghtered into
by Detroit Edison and MichCon meet the criteriacfsed for this exception.

Fair value is defined as the price that would leeired to sell an asset or paid to transfer alitgtin an orderly
transaction between market participants at the mmeasent date in a principal or most advantageou&ehdarair
value is a market-based measurement that is detedniased on inputs, which
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refer broadly to assumptions that market partidipaise in pricing assets and liabilities. Thesatsgan be readily
observable, market corroborated or generally unwbbée inputs. The fair value of derivative contsis
determined from a combination of active quotes liphbd indexes and mathematical valuation modeks. W
generally derive the pricing for our contracts frantive quotes or external resources. Actively gdanhdexes
include exchange-traded positions such as the Nek Mercantile Exchange and the Intercontinentalttaxge,
and over-the-countgositions for which broker quotes are available. periods in which external market data is
readily observable, we estimate value using mathieataaluation models. Valuation models requireéaas inputs
and assumptions, including forward prices, volgtilinterest rates, and exercise periods. For thgags which are
not observable, we use model-based extrapolatiomygechniques or historical analysis to derive téquired
valuation inputs. We periodically update our polayd valuation methodologies for changes in mditeidity and
other assumptions which may impact the estimatied&ue of our derivative contracts.

The fair values we calculate for our derivativesg/mhange significantly as inputs and assumptioasipdated
for new information. Actual cash returns realizedoar derivatives may be different from the resulésestimate
using models. As fair value calculations are edtmbased largely on commodity prices, we perfansisivity
analysis on the fair values of our forward consafee sensitivity analysis in Item 7A. Quanti@atnd Qualitative
Disclosures About Market Risk. See also the Falu¥aection, herein. See Notes 4 and 5 of the Notes
Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of tbort.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We establish an allowance for doubtful accountetam historical losses and management’s assessinent
existing economic conditions, customer trends, @hér factors. The allowance for doubtful accodatour two
utilities is calculated using the aging approaddt thtilizes rates developed in reserve studiesapptles these
factors to past due receivable balances. As atrektiie reduction in past due receivables in 2@08,allowance fo
doubtful accounts decreased in 2009 compared iocagase in 2008. We believe the allowance for tfolib
accounts is based on reasonable estimates. Aeffihg 2005 gas rate order for MichCon, the MPS&ijoled for
the establishment of an uncollectible expense ingckechanism that partially mitigates the impastoiated with
MichCon uncollectible expenses. The MPSC providedafsimilar tracking mechanism for Detroit Edigorits rate
order received January 2010. However, failure t&ar@ntinued progress in collecting our past dgeivables in
light of volatile energy prices and deterioratirmpeomic conditions would unfavorably affect opergtresults and
cash flow.

Asset Impairments
Goodwill

Certain of our reporting units have goodwill ooakted goodwill resulting from purchase business
combinations. We perform an impairment test foteafoour reporting units with goodwill annually whenever
events or circumstances indicate that the valugootiwill may be impaired. In performing Step 1tod impairment
test, we compare the fair value of the reporting tenits carrying value including goodwill. If thearrying value
including goodwill were to exceed the fair valueaafeporting unit, Step 2 of the test would be grened. Step 2 of
the impairment test requires the carrying valugasfdwill to be reduced to its fair value, if lowes of the test date.

For Step 1 of the test, we estimate the reportimigsufair value using standard valuation technigjuecluding
techniques which use estimates of projected fuessalts and cash flows to be generated by the tiegarmit. Such
techniques generally include a terminal value thidizes an earnings multiple approach, which ipooates the
current market values of comparable entities. Tloasé flow valuations involve a number of estimaies require
broad assumptions and significant judgment by mamamt regarding future performance. We also empiasket-
based valuation techniques to test the reasonatderiehe indications of value for the reportingtsidetermined
under the cash flow technique.

We performed our annual impairment test as of Gatdh 2009 and determined that the estimated &irevof
each reporting unit exceeded its carrying valud, mmimpairment existed. We also compared the
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aggregate fair value of our reporting units to overall market capitalization. The implied premiofrithe aggregat
fair value over market capitalization is likelyréiutable to factors such as (1) an acquisitiortr@dmpremium (the
price in excess of a stock’s market price that #twes typically pay to gain control of an entitghd (2) the market’
apparent discounting of DTE Energy’s stock price thuongoing uncertainty regarding the existingutamry and
automotive industry environment and DTE Energyieedse nonutility business portfolio. The results of the tasd
key estimates that were incorporated are as follows

As of October 1, 2009 Valuation Date

Fair Value Discount  Terminal
Reporting Unit Goodwill _ Reduction %(a) Rate Multiple(b) Valuation Methodology(c)
($ in Millions)
Electric Utility $ 1,20¢ 16% 7% 7.Ex DCF, assuming stock se
Gas Utility 772 8% 7% 9.Cx DCF, assuming stock se
Energy Service 28 64% 13% 8.Ex DCF, assuming asset si
Coal Service: 4 10% 10% 7.5Ex DCF, assuming asset si
Gas Storage and Pipelin 8 68% 9% 8.Cx DCF, assuming asset si
Energy Trading 17 78% 15% n/e Blended DCF, economic
value of trading portfolic
Unconventional Gas Productis 2 56% 13% n/e Blended DCF
transaction multiple
$ 2,037

(a) Percentage by which the fair value of the répgrunit would need to decline to equal its cargyvalue,
including goodwill.

(b) Multiple of enterprise value (sum of debt pagiity value) to earnings before interest, taxepreciation and
amortization (EBITDA)

(c) Discounted cash flows (DCF) incorpora201(-2014projected cash flows plus a calculated terminali®:

The Gas Ultility reporting unit passed Step 1 ofithpairment test by a narrow margin. The narronessof
fair value over carrying value is largely due ttatrely low market values and market multiplexofmparable
entities referenced in our valuation. Further dexdiin market multiples, negative regulatory adionother
disruptions in cash flows for the Gas Utility refiog unit could result in an impairment chargelie foreseeable
future. For example, at the current discount ratktzolding all other variables constant, a 0.5x&ase in the
terminal multiple would lower the fair value by apgimately $130 million. At the lower fair valuehe Gas Utility
reporting unit would likely fail Step 1 of the tgmbtentially resulting in a charge for impairmefgoodwill
following completion of the Step 2 analysis.

We perform an annual impairment test each Octdbdretween annual tests, we monitor our estimatds a
assumptions regarding estimated future cash flowekjding the impact of movements in market indicatin future
quarters and will update our impairment analysestifggering event occurs. While we believe owuasptions are
reasonable, actual results may differ from ourgumtipns. To the extent projected results or cashdlare revised
downward, the reporting unit may be required taevdown all or a portion of its goodwill, which widuadversely
impact our earnings.

We monitor DTE Energy’s stock price in relationt®book value per share. DTE'’s stock price dedine
significantly during the first quarter of 2009 atten increased and continued to recover througiheutest of 2009.
Refer to Note 6 of the Notes to Consolidated Firedr&tatements in Item 8 of this Report, for a dision of factor
that we considered when assessing triggering eue2309.
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Due to the duration and severity of the declinBrE Energy’s stock price in the first quarter, waafprmed an
interim impairment test for all reporting units Wwiallocated goodwill as of February 28, 2009. e first quarter
interim test, we updated projected future resahish flows and discount rates to reflect existegufatory actions
and negative impacts from the deterioration inrfggonal and national economy. Terminal values titiize an
earnings multiple approach were updated to incateahe current market values of comparable estifis
compared to the annual test performed in the foyuwtirter of 2008, the valuations were negativelyanted by
existing market factors with particular downwaréssure on market multiples. All reporting unitsgeasStep 1 of
the impairment test.

We identified a trigger for our Energy Servicesagimg unit related to long-lived asset impairmtssts that
were performed during the second quarter on ceataiomotive-related project companies. The faiuealf the
reporting unit exceeded its carrying value inclgdgoodwill, therefore, the reporting unit passeepSt of the
impairment test. As compared to the first quarntégnim test, the second quarter valuation was &blgrimpacted
by increased market multiples and an improved distaate.

Long-Lived Assets

We evaluate the carrying value of our long-livededs, excluding goodwill, when circumstances indi¢hat
the carrying value of those assets may not be srable. Conditions that could have an adverse itathe cash
flows and fair value of the long-lived assets agtedorating business climate, condition of theegsw plans to
dispose of the asset before the end of its usiéullhe review of long-lived assets for impairmesquires
significant assumptions about operating strategigsestimates of future cash flows, which requaseasments of
current and projected market conditions. An impaintrevaluation is based on an undiscounted cashdit@alysis a
the lowest level for which independent cash flofvkong-lived assets can be identified from otheaugs of assets
and liabilities. Impairment may occur when the gang value of the asset exceeds the future undigeducash
flows. When the undiscounted cash flow analysiscaigs a long-lived asset is not recoverable, theumt of the
impairment loss is determined by measuring the #xoéthe long-lived asset over its fair value.ifpairment
would require us to reduce both the long-lived tiasd current period earnings by the amount ofrtigairment,
which would adversely impact our earnings. See N6tef Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementtem 8 of
this Report.

The Company’s Power and Industrial Projects segmasiong-term contracts with GM to provide onsite
energy services at certain of its manufacturing ashainistrative facilities. The long-term contraptsvide for full
recovery of its investment in the event of earlyrti@ation. At December 31, 2009, the book valutof-lived
assets used in the servicing of these facilities agproximately $65 million. Certain of these Idivgd assets have
been funded by non-recourse financing totaling epprately $56 million at December 31, 2009. The @any’s
Power and Industrial Projects segment also hasjaityeénvestment of approximately $51 million in antity which
provides onsite services to Chrysler manufactutaegities. Chrysler’s performance under the loegat contracts
for services is guaranteed by Daimler North Ame@eaporation (Daimler), a subsidiary of Daimler AGe long-
term contracts and the supporting Daimler guaramteeide for full recovery of the Company’s investnt in the
event of early termination or default. Chrysler hasounced the closure of one site that is undlamgrterm service
contract with the Company. Through December 319260the extent that Chrysler has not been peifagnim
accordance with its contracts, Daimler has beefopring under its guarantee. Therefore, the Comatigves
that it will recover its investment in the eventaofacility closure or a Chrysler default.

The Company determined that the GM and Chryslekiugntcy filings were triggering events to assessaie
automotive-related long-lived assets for impairmaamd as of June 30, 2009, the Company performéuahaairment
analysis on these assets. Based on its undiscocasédlow projections and fair value calculatiaig Company
determined that it did not have an impairment kts3une 30, 2009. We also determined that we dithane an
other than temporary decline in our Chrysler-ralaquity investment. There were no new events oguduring
the third and fourth quarters that would negativeipact the assumptions made for the second quarpairment
analysis. Therefore, no triggering events weretifled during the remainder of 2009. The Comparassumptions
and conclusions may change in the future, and wkldmave an impairment loss if certain facilities aot utilized
as currently anticipated.
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Pension and Postretirement Cos

We sponsor defined benefit pension plans and gvstreent benefit plans for substantially all of graployees
of the Company. The measurement of the plan oltigaiand cost of providing benefits under thesagplavolve
various factors, including numerous assumptionsaaegunting elections. When determining the various
assumptions that are required, we consider histianéormation as well as future expectations. bkaefit costs are
affected by, among other things, the actual ratetirn on plan assets, the long-term expectedmretu plan assets,
the discount rate applied to benefit obligatiohsg, incidence of mortality, the expected remainieyise period of
plan participants, level of compensation and rd®ompensation increases, employee age, lengtéreice, the
anticipated rate of increase of health care caoslglze level of benefits provided to employees iatidees. Pension
and postretirement benefit costs attributed tcstigaments are included with labor costs and ultilpatéocated to
projects within the segments, some of which arétalized.

We had pension costs for pension plans of $58aniiin 2009, $24 million in 2008, and $76 million2007.
Postretirement benefits costs for all plans we@$aillion in 2009, $142 million in 2008 and $188lian in 2007.
Pension and postretirement benefits costs for 200%alculated based upon a number of actuariairgsfons,
including an expected long-term rate of return anman assets of 8.75%. In developing our expelctegtterm rati
of return assumption, we evaluated asset clasarnidketurn expectations, as well as inflation aggions.
Projected returns are based on broad equity, bodater markets. Our 2010 expected long-termafteturn on
pension plan assets is based on an asset alloeassomption utilizing active investment managenoédt% in
equity markets, 25% in fixed income markets, anth38vested in other assets. Because of marketiltgiatve
periodically review our asset allocation and rebed¢aour portfolio when considered appropriate. Ginarket
conditions, we believe that 8.75% is a reasonaivig-term rate of return on our plan assets for 204® will
continue to evaluate our actuarial assumptiond,direg our expected rate of return, at least aripual

We calculate the expected return on pension aref pitstretirement benefit plan assets by multigjythre
expected return on plan assets by the market-telatieile (MRV) of plan assets at the beginning efythar, taking
into consideration anticipated contributions anddfit payments that are to be made during the y&aanmrent
accounting rules provide that the MRV of plan assah be either fair value or a calculated vala¢ thcognizes
changes in fair value in a systematic and ratiamahner over not more than five years. For our pengians, we
use a calculated value when determining the MR¥hefpension plan assets and recognize changeis afiae
over a three-year period. Accordingly, the futuadéue of assets will be impacted as previously defegains or
losses are recognized. Financial markets in 208&iboted to our investment performance resulting i
unrecognized net gains. As of December 31, 200%ade$612 million of cumulative losses that rentaibe
recognized in the calculation of the MRV of pensamsets. For our postretirement benefit plans, sedfair value
when determining the MRV of postretirement bengfitn assets, therefore all investment losses aing have bee
recognized in the calculation of MRV for these glan

The discount rate that we utilize for determiningufe pension and postretirement benefit obligatisrbased
on a yield curve approach and a review of bondsréweive one of the two highest ratings given bgagnized
rating agency. The yield curve approach matcheggted plan pension and postretirement benefit gayrstreams
with bond portfolios reflecting actual liability dation unique to our plans. The discount rate deised on this
basis decreased from 6.9% at December 31, 2008% &t December 31, 2009. We estimate that our &40
pension costs will approximate $110 million compbte $58 million in 2009 due to 2008 financial matrlosses
and a decreased discount rate, partially offsetutpstantial 2009 and planned 2010 contributionplealwith
greater than expected 2009 financial market retu®us 2010 postretirement benefit costs will apjprate
$167 million compared to $205 million in 2009 prifivadue to company specific health care trends fandrable
2009 investment returns, mitigated by a decreassdnt rate. Future actual pension and postretineienefit
costs will depend on future investment performacbanges in future discount rates and various d#utors relate
to plan design. The pension cost tracking mechatfisinprovided for recovery or refunding of pensimsts above
or below amounts reflected in Detroit Edison’s bades, at the request of Detroit Edison, was eatthorized by
the MPSC in its rate order effective
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January 1, 2009. In April 2005, the MPSC approveddeferral of the non-capitalized portion of Miahs
negative pension expense. MichCon records a regylaability for any negative pension costs, atedmined unde
generally accepted accounting principles.

Lowering the expected long-term rate of return onman assets by one percentage point would hereased
our 2009 pension costs by approximately $29 millioswering the discount rate and the salary in@eas
assumptions by one percentage point would haveased our 2009 pension costs by approximately $li6m
Lowering the health care cost trend assumptionsngypercentage point would have decreased ourgpiostnent
benefit service and interest costs for 2009 by @axprately $30 million.

In 2008, we changed the measurement date of ogigreand postretirement benefit plans from Noven3er
to December 31. As a result we recognized adjugsya$17 million ($9 million after-tax) and $4 tidin to
retained earnings and regulatory liabilities, resipely, which represents approximately one morfthemsion and
other postretirement benefit cost for the periaarfrDecember 1, 2007 to December 31, 2008.

The value of our pension and postretirement bepkfit assets was $3.4 billion at December 31, 20@0
$2.8 billion at December 31, 2008. At DecemberZR)9 our pension plans were underfunded by $88lfomind
our other postretirement benefit plans were unaeléd by $1.3 billion. The 2009 and 2008 fundingelswere
generally similar because of positive investmemtqenance returns and plan sponsor contributiorZ09, largely
offset by the decreased discount rates.

Pension and postretirement costs and pension oasing requirements may increase in future yeatisout
typical returns in the financial markets. We madetdbutions to our pension plans of $200 milliorda
$100 million in 2009 and 2008, respectively. Alae contributed $100 million to our pension plandamuary
2010. At the discretion of management, consistétit the Pension Protection Act of 2006, and depemdipon
financial market conditions, we anticipate makimgta an additional $100 million contribution to quension plans
in 2010 and up to $1.1 billion over the next fiveays. We made postretirement benefit plan contabstof
$205 million and $116 million in 2009 and 2008, restively. We are required by orders issued byMR&SC to
make postretirement benefit contributions at legsial to the amounts included in Detroit Edisomd MichCon’s
base rates. As a result, we expect to make ug$ida million contribution to our postretirementman 2010 and,
subject to MPSC funding requirements, up to $76laniover the next five years. The planned conttidns will
be made in cash, DTE Energy common stock or a amatibn of cash and stock.

See Note 21 of the Notes to Consolidated Finagtatiements in Item 8 of this Report.

Legal Reserves

We are involved in various legal proceedings, ctaand litigation arising in the ordinary coursebasiness.
We regularly assess our liabilities and contingesian connection with asserted or potential mataerd establish
reserves when appropriate. Legal reserves are hbggadmanagement’s assessment of pending andeheshblegal
proceedings and claims against us.

Insured and Uninsured Risks

Our comprehensive insurance program provides cgedi@ various types of risks. Our insurance pe#ci
cover risk of loss including property damage, gehkability, workers’ compensation, auto liabiljtgnd directors’
and officers’ liability. Under our risk managemgmlicy, we self-insure portions of certain riskstopspecified
limits, depending on the type of exposure. The maxn self-insured retention for various risks igakbws:
property damage- $10 million, general liability- Sifllion, workers’ compensation- $9 million, andtadiability-
$7 million. We have an actuarially determined eatenof our incurred but not reported (IBNR) liatyilprepared
annually and we adjust our reserves for self-irguigks as appropriate. As of December 31, 2009 JBNR
liability was approximately $38 million.
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Accounting for Tax Obligations

We are required to make judgments regarding thenpial tax effects of various financial transacti@nd
results of operations in order to estimate ourgations to taxing authorities. We account for utaiarincome tax
positions using a benefit recognition model witfiva-step approach, a more-likely-than-not recognitriterion
and a measurement attribute that measures théopoast the largest amount of tax benefit that &atgr than 50%
likely of being realized upon ultimate settlemdhthe benefit does not meet the more likely thanhariteria for
being sustained on its technical merits, no bemsélitoe recorded. Uncertain tax positions thatitelonly to timing
of when an item is included on a tax return areswtered to have met the recognition threshold. e lzave non-
income tax obligations related to property, sales$ @se and employment-related taxes and ongoingedppelated
to these tax matters.

Accounting for tax obligations requires judgmeintsjuding assessing whether tax benefits are mikoetylthan
not to be sustained, and estimating reserves fiengial adverse outcomes regarding tax positioasthve been
taken. We also assess our ability to utilize taritattes, including those in the form of carryfonds, for which the
benefits have already been reflected in the firdrstatements. We do not record valuation allowsrficedeferred
tax assets related to capital losses that we l@eligl be realized in future periods. We believe tksulting tax
reserve balances as of December 31, 2009 and Dec&hp2008 are appropriately accounted. The utéma
outcome of such matters could result in favorablerdavorable adjustments to our consolidated firerstatemen
and such adjustments could be material.

See Note 13 of the Notes to Consolidated Finaigtatements in Item 8 of this Report.

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
See Note 3 of the Notes to Consolidated Finandaksents in Item 8 of this Report.

FAIR VALUE

Derivatives are generally recorded at fair valué simown as Derivative Assets or Liabilities. Coatsave
typically classify as derivative instruments inadugower, gas, oil and certain coal forwards, fuguoptions and
swaps, and foreign exchange contracts. Items wetlgenerally account for as derivatives includeppietary gas
inventory, gas storage and transportation arrangemnand gas and oil reserves. See Notes 4 anthg dfotes to
Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of eport.

As a result of adherence to generally acceptedustitm principles, the tables below do not incldae
expected earnings impact of non-derivative gasagmrtransportation and power contracts. Conselgugains and
losses from these positions may not match withréleted physical and financial hedging instrumémtsome
reporting periods, resulting in volatility in DTEnErgy’s reported period-by-period earnings; howgtrer financial
impact of the timing differences will reverse at time of physical delivery and/or settlement.

The Company manages its mark-to-malk&TM) risk on a portfolio basis based upon the dmty period of its
contracts and the individual components of thesriskhin each contract. Accordingly, it records ananages the
energy purchase and sale obligations under itsactstin separate components based on the comn{edity
electricity or gas), the product (e.g. electridiy delivery during peak or off-peak hours), théivdery location (e.qg.
by region), the risk profile (e.g. forward or opt)pand the delivery period (e.g. by month and yéEre following
tables contain the four categories of activitiggesented by their operating characteristics agdikés:

« Economic Hedge — Represents derivative activity associated wittess owned and contracted by DTE
Energy, including forward sales of gas productind trades associated with owned transportation and
storage capacity. Changes in the value of derigatin this category economically offset changdbénvalue
of underlying non-derivative positions, which da goalify for fair value accounting. The differenice
accounting treatment of derivatives in this catggord the underlying non-derivative positions casuitt in
significant earnings volatility
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 Structured Contracts— Represents derivative activity transacted bginating hedged positions with
wholesale energy marketers, producers, end usdities) retail aggregators and alternative enesggpliers
Substantially all of this activity represents ftduirements contracts, whereby the hedged pegeiga
largely based on estimated load requireme

» Proprietary Trading — Represents derivative activity transacted whthintent of taking a view, capturing
market price changes, or putting capital at ridkis&ctivity is speculative in nature as opposeldetiging an
existing exposure

« Other — Includes derivative activity associated with ourcdnventional Gas reserves. A portion of the
risk associated with anticipated production from Barnett natural gas reserves has been mitigatedgh
2010. Changes in the value of the hedges are redasl Derivative assets or liabilities, with arseffin
Other comprehensive income to the extent that ¢dugés are deemed effective. The amounts showr in th
following tables exclude the value of the underdygas reserves including changes therein. Other als
includes derivative activity at Detroit Edison tteld to FTR’s and forward contracts related to eimiss
Changes in the value of derivative contracts atdteEdison are recorded as Derivative assetsabiliies,
with an offset to Regulatory assets or liabilitéssthe settlement value of these contracts wilhbleided in
the PSCR mechanism when realiz

The following tables provide details on changesun MTM net asset (or liability) position during @®

Economic Structured Proprietary

Hedges Contracts Trading Other Total
(in Millions)
MTM at December 31, 20C $ 18 $ (222 ¢ 22 $ 9 §$173
Reclassify to realized upon settlem (23 98 (19¢) (8 (131
Changes in fair value recorded to inca 9 (32 203 — 18C
Amounts recorded to unrealized inco 14 66 5 (8) 49
Changes in fair value recorded in regulatory litibs — — — (16) (16)
Amounts recorded in other comprehensive incoméap — — — 5 5
Change in collateral held by othe 9 21 68 — 98
Option premiums paid and oth — 3 (65) 6 (56)
MTM at December 31, 20C $ 13 $ (139 % 30 $ @4 $093

A substantial portion of the Company’s price rigkated to its Antrim shale gas exploration and potidn
business was mitigated by financial contracts tieatged our price risk exposure through 2013. Tinéracts were
retained when the Antrim business was sold anctiiifigy financial contracts were put into place ffecively settle
these positions. The contracts will require paymémtough 2013. These contracts represent a signifportion of
the above net mark-to-market liability.
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The following table provides a current and noncorenalysis of Derivative assets and liabilitiesyeflected
on the Consolidated Statements of Financial Posé®of December 31, 2009. Amounts that relat®ndracts that
become due within twelve months are classifiedusseat and all remaining amounts are classifiedaagurrent.

Economic Structured Proprietary Assets
Hedges Contracts Trading Eliminations Other (Liabilities)
(in Millions)
Current assel $ 11 $ 171 % 27 % 4 $ 4 $ 20¢
Noncurrent asse 8 104 5 (1) — 11€
Total MTM asset: 19 27¢ 32 (5) 4 32t
Current liabilities 5) (21¢) 4 4 5) (220
Noncurrent liabilities (1) (189) (6) 1 3 (19¢)
Total MTM liabilities (6) (407) (2 5 (8) (41¢)
Total MTM net assets (liabilities $ 13 $ (132 ¢ 30 % — $ 4 9 (93

The table below shows the maturity of our MTM piosis:

2013

and Total Fair

Source of Fair Value 2010 2011 2012 Beyonc Value
(in Millions)

Economic Hedge $6 $0B $4 $ 14 39 13
Structured Contract 45 (35 (22 (30 (132
Proprietary Trading 29 5 2 (6) 30
Other (1) (3) — — (4
Total $(11) 3$3B6) $24 $ (220 $ (93

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MagkRisk

Market Price Risk

DTE Energy has commodity price risk in both utilégd non-utility businesses arising from marketgori
fluctuations.

The Electric and Gas utility businesses have risk®njunction with the anticipated purchases &flcoatural
gas, uranium, electricity, and base metals to it service obligations. However, the Companysdoat bear
significant exposure to earnings risk as such casuage included in the form of PSCR and GCR regnjatite-
recovery mechanisms. In addition, changes in thoe mf natural gas can impact the valuation of ot stolen gas,
storage sales revenue and uncollectible expensghe &as Utility. Gas Utility manages its markaterrisk related
to storage sales revenue primarily through the alleng-term storage contracts. The Company teaskiing
mechanisms to mitigate a portion of losses reltiadcollectible accounts receivable at MichCon Bedroit
Edison. The Company is exposed to short-term dashdr liquidity risk as a result of the time diféantial between
actual cash settlements and regulatory rate regover

Our Gas Storage and Pipelines business segmeliirfiizsl exposure to natural gas price fluctuatiand
manages its exposure through the sale of long-$éonage and transportation contracts.

Our Unconventional Gas Production business seghamnéxposure to natural gas and, to a lesser extede
oil price fluctuations. These commodity price fiuations can impact both current year earnings eserve
valuations. To manage this exposure we may useaforenergy and futures contracts.

Our Power and Industrial Projects business segmautbject to electricity, natural gas, coal andldmsed
product price risk and other risks associated thiehweakened U.S. economy. To the extent that
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commodity price risk has not been mitigated throtighuse of long-term contracts, we manage thissxg using
forward energy, capacity and futures contracts.

Our Energy Trading business segment has expos@ledtricity, natural gas, crude oil, heating aitd foreign
exchange price fluctuations. These risks are mahbg®ur energy marketing and trading operationsuph the us
of forward energy, capacity, storage, options andrés contracts, within pre-determined risk patense

Credit Risk
Bankruptcies

The Company purchases and sells electricity, gad, coke and other energy products from and toanaas
companies operating in the steel, automotive, gneegail, financial and other industries. Certafrts customers
have filed for bankruptcy protection under Chagtkof the U.S. Bankruptcy Code. The Company reguteviews
contingent matters relating to these customerstamqirchase and sale contracts and records poogi$or amounts
considered at risk of probable loss. The Compatig\es its accrued amounts are adequate for prebbass. The
final resolution of these matters may have a malteffect on its consolidated financial statements.

The Company’s utilities and certain non-utility messes provide services to the domestic automutdestry,
including GM, Ford Motor Company (Ford) and Chrysled many of their vendors and suppliers. Chryfked for
bankruptcy protection on April 30, 2009. We haveerged approximately $9 million of pre-petition aonts
receivable related to Chrysler as of December BQ92GM filed for bankruptcy protection on Jun€@09. We
have reserved or written off approximately $5 roiiliof pre-petition accounts and notes receivalieae to GM as
of December 31, 2009. Closing of GM or Chryslengdaor other facilities that operate within Detriadison’s
service territory will also negatively impact ther@pany’s operating revenues in future periods.0e92 GM and
Chrysler each represented two percent of our areleetric sales volumes, respectively. GM and Aenjsave an
immaterial impact to MichCon'’s revenues.

Other

We engage in business with customers that aremasiment grade. We closely monitor the credinhgatiof
these customers and, when deemed necessary, vestegllateral or guarantees from such customessdore the
obligations.

Trading Activities

We are exposed to credit risk through trading #&as. Credit risk is the potential loss that magult if our
trading counterparties fail to meet their contratubligations. We utilize both external and intdhy
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generated credit assessments when determiningeta quality of our trading counterparties. Thédwing table
displays the credit quality of our trading countatjes as of December 31, 2009:

Credit Exposure

Before Cash Cash Net Credit
Collateral Collateral Exposure
(in Millions)

Investment Grade(]
A-and Greate $ 254 $ (129 $ 24:
BBB+ and BBB 177 — 177
BBB- 54 — 54
Total Investment Grad 48E (12 4732
Non-investment grade(z 2 — 2
Internally Rate— investment grade(: 99 — 99
Internally Ratec— nor-investment grade(« 10 — 10
Total $ 59¢ $ (120 $ 584

(1) This category includes counterparties with minimenedit ratings of Baa3 assigned by Moody'’s Investor
Service (Moody’s) and BBB- assigned by Standardof Rating Group (Standard & Poor’s). The fivegkest
counterparty exposures combined for this categepyasented approximately 29 percent of the totEgcredit
exposure

(2) This category includes counterparties with crealiings that are below investment grade. The fivgelst
counterparty exposures combined for this categepyesented less than one percent of the total gredst
exposure

(3) This category includes counterparties that havebaeh rated by Moody’s or Standard & Poor’s, baet ar
considered investment grade based on DTE Energglsi&ion of the counterparty’s creditworthineskeTive
largest counterparty exposures combined for thisgoay represented approximately 14 percent ofdtas gros:
credit exposure

(4) This category includes counterparties that havébaeh rated by Moody’s or Standard & Poor’s, ared ar
considered non-investment grade based on DTE Eisezggluation of the counterparty’s creditworthineshe
five largest counterparty exposures combined fier¢htegory represented less than two percenedbtial gros
credit exposure

Interest Rate Risk

DTE Energy is subject to interest rate risk in aaetion with the issuance of debt and preferredrigesi In
order to manage interest costs, we may use treémeky and interest rate swap agreements. Our expds interes
rate risk arises primarily from changes in U.S.ab@y rates, commercial paper rates and London-Baak
Offered Rates (LIBOR). As of December 31, 2009 had a floating rate debt-to-total debt ratio of rapgmately
five percent (excluding securitized debt).

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Company has foreign exchange risk arising fincanket price fluctuations associated with fixecdced
contracts. These contracts are denominated in Ganddllars and are primarily for the purchase salé of power
as well as for long-term transportation capacity lifnit our exposure to foreign exchange fluctuasiowe have
entered into a series of exchange forward contthotsigh January 2013. Additionally, we may enio ifair value
exchange hedges to mitigate changes in the valoentfacts or loans.

Summary of Sensitivity Analysis

The Company performed a sensitivity analysis orfdirevalues of our commodity contracts, long-tetebt
obligations and foreign exchange forward contratfe commaodity contracts and foreign exchange risk
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listed below principally relate to our energy maikg and trading activities. The sensitivity an&yisivolved
increasing and decreasing forward rates at DeceB81he2009 and 2008 by a hypothetical 10% and catitig the
resulting change in the fair values.

The results of the sensitivity analysis calculagies of December 31, 2009 and 2008:
Assuming a Assuming a

10% Increase in Rate 10% Decrease in Rate
As of December 31, As of December 31,

Activity 2009 2008 2009 2008 Change in the Fair Value o
(in Millions)
Coal Contract: $ — $ 1% — $ (1) Commodity contract
Gas Contract $ @ $ (1393 1 $ 13 Commodity contract
Oil Contracts $ 1 $ 1% (1) $ (1) Commodity contract
Power Contract $ 3 $ 3% 2 $ (2) Commodity contract
Interest Rate Ris $(290) $(317) $ 31z $ 34€ Long-term debt
Foreign Exchange Ris $ 2 $ 5% (9 $ (5) Forward contract
Discount Rate $ — $ 1% — $ (1) Commodity contract

For further discussion of market risk, see Notd the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementsem 8 of
this Report.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The following consolidated financial statements &ndncial statement schedule are included herein.
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Controls and Procedures
() Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedur

Management of the Company carried out an evaluatioder the supervision and with the participatdéDTE
Energy’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Finah¢ficer, of the effectiveness of the design apémtion of the
Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (fsetkin Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-)%(& of
December 31, 2009, which is the end of the permaied by this report. Based on this evaluatiom,Gbmpany’s
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Offideave concluded that such controls and procedueesfective
in providing reasonable assurance that informatguired to be disclosed by the Company in reghgsit files or
submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, precksaimmarized and reported within the time pergmiified
in the SECS rules and forms. Disclosure controls and proasdunrclude, without limitation, controls and proaest
designed to provide reasonable assurance thamatan required to be disclosed by the Companhéréports
that it files or submits under the Exchange A@dsumulated and communicated to the Company’s neameugt,
including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Rimcial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely dgans regarding
required disclosure. Due to the inherent limitagsiéomthe effectiveness of any disclosure controbs grocedures,
management cannot provide absolute assurancéthabjectives of its disclosure controls and proces will be
attained.

(b) Managemen's report on internal control over financial reporrtig

Management of the Company is responsible for dstabfy and maintaining adequate internal contr@rov
financial reporting as such term is defined in Eatudpe Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f). Internaitoa over
financial reporting is a process designed by, aeurthe supervision of, our CEO and CFO, to provéssonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financigdaging and the preparation of financial statemémt&xternal
purposes in accordance with generally accepteduatiog principles.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or dete
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluatibeffectiveness to future periods are subjechéorisk that
controls may become inadequate because of chamgesditions, or that the degree of compliance Withpolicies
or procedures may deteriorate.

Management of the Company has assessed the efieetis of the Company’s internal control over fir@nc
reporting as of December 31, 2009. In making thieasment, management used the criteria set fpttieb
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tremd@ommission (COSO) imternal Control — Integrated
Framework.Based on this assessment, management concludedslwdtDecember 31, 2009, the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting was effee based on those criteria.

The effectiveness of the Company’s internal contk@r financial reporting as of December 31, 2089 been
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an indepemdgistered public accounting firm who also aedlithe
Company’s financial statements, as stated in tiepiort which appears herein.

(c) Changes in internal control over financial reportin

There have been no changes in the Company'’s inteong&ol over financial reporting during the quaréended
December 31, 2009 that have materially affectedyereasonably likely to materially affect, then@Gmany’s
internal control over financial reporting.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
DTE Energy Company:

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetadisted in the accompanying index present fairlyall
material respects, the financial position of DTEeEyy Company and its subsidiaries at December@®19,2and the
results of their operations and their cash flowslie year then ended in conformity with accountinigciples
generally accepted in the United States of Ametitaddition, in our opinion, the financial statamhechedule for
the year ended December 31, 2009 listed in thenaganying index presents fairly, in all materialpests, the
information set forth therein when read in conjumtiwith the related consolidated financial statataeAlso in our
opinion, the Company maintained, in all materiajects, effective internal control over financigborting as of
December 31, 2009, based on criteria establishédeémal Control — Integrated Framewoiksued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tremd@ommission (COSO). The Company’s management is
responsible for these financial statements andhéiah statement schedule, for maintaining effeciiternal control
over financial reporting and for its assessmerthefeffectiveness of internal control over finahoggporting,
included in the accompanying Management’s repoititarnal control over financial reporting. Our pessibility is
to express opinions on these financial statement#he financial statement schedule, and on thepgaoyts interna
control over financial reporting based on our in&gd audit. We conducted our audit in accordaritte tive
standards of the Public Company Accounting Ovetdiglard (United States). Those standards requitevtk plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assarabgut whether the financial statements are fresaterial
misstatement and whether effective internal cordvelr financial reporting was maintained in all erél respects.
Our audit of the financial statements included examg, on a test basis, evidence supporting theustsoand
disclosures in the financial statements, asseskgccounting principles used and significaninesties made by
management, and evaluating the overall financékstent presentation. Our audit of internal corakar financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding trimal control over financial reporting, assessh@risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evatu#imdesign and operating effectiveness of interoratrol based
on the assessed risk. Our audit also included peitfig such other procedures as we considered raagassthe
circumstances. We believe that our audit providesagonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablesassu
regarding the reliability of financial reportingdthe preparation of financial statements for exdkepurposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting ipieee A company’s internal control over finanaiaporting
includes those policies and procedures that (fapeto the maintenance of records that, in redsengetail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions disghositions of the assets of the company; (iiyvule reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as nacesgarmit preparation of financial statementsd@cordance wit
generally accepted accounting principles, andréipts and expenditures of the company are breadg only in
accordance with authorizations of management anedtdirs of the company; and (iii) provide reasoaassurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauitexd acquisition, use, or disposition of the comps assets that
could have a material effect on the financial stegsts.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or dete
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluatibeffectiveness to future periods are subjechéorisk that
controls may become inadequate because of chamgesditions, or that the degree of compliance Withpolicies
or procedures may deteriorate.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Detroit, Michigan

February 23, 2010
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
DTE Energy Company:

We have audited the consolidated statement of ¢iahposition of DTE Energy Company and subsidg(ibe
“Company”) as of December 31, 2008, and the relatetsolidated statements of operations, cash fland,
changes in shareholdeexjuity and comprehensive income for years ende@mber 31, 2008 and 2007. Our au
also included the 2008 and 2007 information infthancial statement schedules listed in the accoyipg index.
These financial statements and financial statesehedules are the responsibility of the Companysagement.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion ondbesolidated financial statements and financiakstant schedules
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting Oversighago
(United States). Those standards require that e ghd perform the audit to obtain reasonable assarabout
whether the financial statements are free of malterisstatement. An audit includes examining, ¢@sa basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosuréigifinancial statements. An audit also includegssing the
accounting principles used and significant estismatade by management, as well as evaluating thralbfieancial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial stateta@resent fairly, in all material respects, tinaricial
position of DTE Energy Company and subsidiarieBetember 31, 2008, and the results of their operatand
their cash flows for the years ended December 328 2nd 2007 in conformity with accounting prinegplgenerally
accepted in the United States of America. Als@munopinion, such 2008 and 2007 financial statersehédules,
when considered in relation to the basic consadéinancial statements of the Company taken aBdeypresent
fairly, in all material respects, the informaticet $orth therein.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Detroit, Michigan
February 27, 2009

(August 20, 2009, as to the effects of the retrotpe adoption of Accounting Standards Codificat{t/hSC”)
810-10 and ASC 260-10 as described in Note 3 teatinsolidated financial statements)
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DTE ENERGY COMPANY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 3.
2009 2008 2007
(in Millions, except per
share amounts)

Operating Revenues $8,01¢ $9,32¢ $8,47¢
Operating Expenses
Fuel, purchased power and ¢ 3,11¢ 4,30¢ 3,552
Operation and maintenan 2,372 2,69 2,892
Depreciation, depletion and amortizat 1,02( 901 932
Taxes other than incon 27¢ 304 357
Gain on sale of nc-utility business — (12¢) (900)
Other asset (gains) and losses, reserves and mgas, ne (20) (12) 37
6,76 8,06¢ 6,87(
Operating Income 1,24¢ 1,267 1,60t
Other (Income) and Deductions
Interest expens 54¢ 50z 53¢
Interest incom:e 29 29 (25)
Other income (102 (104) (93
Other expense 43 64 35
467 444 45C
Income Before Income Taxe: 782 81¢ 1,15¢
Income Tax Provision 247 28¢€ 364
Income from Continuing Operations 53t 531 791
Discontinued Operations Income (Loss), net of ta — 22 (4)
Net Income 53¢ 55Z 787

Less: Net Income (Loss) Attributable to Noncontroiing Interests From

Continuing operation 3 5 4
Discontinued operatior — 2 (18€)
3 7 (184
Net Income Attributable to DTE Energy Company $ 53z $ 546 $ 971
Basic Earnings per Common Shar
Income from continuing operatiol $324 $32z2 $46z
Discontinued operatior — A2 1.0¢
Total $ 3.24 $ 3.34 $ 5.7C
Diluted Earnings per Common Share
Income from continuing operatiol $324 $32z2 $461
Discontinued operatior — .12 1.0¢
Total $ 3.24 $ 3.34 $ 5.6¢
Weighted Average Common Shares Outstandin
Basic 164 163 17C
Diluted 164 163 171
Dividends Declared per Common Shar $ 2.1z $ 2.1z $ 2.1z

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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DTE ENERGY COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31

2009 2008
(in Millions)
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalel $ 52 $ 86
Restricted cas 84 86
Accounts receivable (less allowance for doubtfuloamnts of $262 and $265, respective
Customel 1,43¢ 1,66¢€
Other 217 16€
Inventories
Fuel and ga 30¢ 33:
Materials and supplie 20C 20€
Deferred income taxe 167 227
Derivative asset 20¢ 31€
Other 201 242
2,87 3,32¢
Investments
Nuclear decommissioning trust fun 817 68t
Other 59¢ 59k
1,41¢ 1,28(
Property
Property, plant and equipme 20,58¢ 20,06¢
Less accumulated depreciation, depletion and apadidin (8,157%) (7,839
12,43: 12,23!
Other Assets
Goodwill 2,024 2,03
Regulatory asse 4,11( 4,231
Securitized regulatory ass¢ 87C 1,001
Intangible assel 54 70
Notes receivabl 11z 11k
Derivative asset 11€ 14C
Other 18t 157
7,47 7,751
Total Assets $24,198  $24,59(

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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DTE ENERGY COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL PosiTioN — (CONTINUED)

December 31
2009 2008
(in Millions,
except shares)

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities

Accounts payabl $ 72 $ 89¢
Accrued interes 114 11¢
Dividends payabli 88 86
Shor-term borrowings 327 744
Current portion lon-term debt, including capital leas 671 362
Derivative liabilities 22C 28t
Other 50z 51¢

2,64¢ 3,01¢

Long-Term Debt (net of current portion)

Mortgage bonds, notes and otl 6,237 6,45¢
Securitization bond 792 932
Trust preferre-linked securitie: 28¢ 28¢
Capital lease obligatior 51 62

7,37( 7,741

Other Liabilities

Deferred income taxe 2,09¢ 1,95¢
Regulatory liabilities 1,33i 1,20z
Asset retirement obligatior 1,42( 1,34(C
Unamortized investment tax cre 85 96
Derivative liabilities 19¢ 344
Liabilities from transportation and storage conis: 96 111
Accrued pension liabilit 881 871
Accrued postretirement liabilit 1,28i 1,43¢
Nuclear decommissionir 13€ 114
Other 32¢ 32¢

7,86¢ 7,79¢

Commitments and Contingencies (Notes 12 and 2

Equity
Common stock, without par value, 400,000,000 shanéisorized, 165,400,045 and
163,019,596 shares issued and outstanding, respkc 3,25i 3,17¢
Retained earning 3,16¢ 2,98t
Accumulated other comprehensive |i (147) (165)
Total DTE Energy Company Shareholder’ Equity 6,27¢ 5,99¢
Noncontrolling interest 38 43
Total Equity 6,31¢ 6,03¢
Total Liabilities and Equity $24,19F  $24,59(

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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DTE ENERGY COMPANY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLows

Year Ended December 3.

2009 2008 2007
(in Millions)
Operating Activities
Net income $ 53t $ 55 §$ 787
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net casifoperating activities
Depreciation, depletion and amortizat 1,02( 89¢ 92€
Deferred income taxe 20t 34¢ 144
Gain on sale of nc-utility business — (128) (900
Other asset (gains), losses and reserve: (20 4 (©)]
Gain on sale of interests in synfuel proje — (32) (24¢)
Impairment of synfuel projec — — 4
Contributions from synfuel partne — 14 22¢
Changes in assets and liabilities, exclusive ohgka shown separately
(Note 23) 69 (92 192
Net cash from operating activiti 1,81¢ 1,55¢ 1,12¢
Investing Activities
Plant and equipment expenditu— utility (960) (1,187 (1,039
Plant and equipment expenditu— nor-utility (75) (290 (2649)
Proceeds from sale of interests in synfuel proj — 84 447
Refunds to synfuel partne — (387) (11%)
Proceeds from sale of n-utility business — 253 1,262
Proceeds from sale of other assets. 83 25 85
Restricted cash for debt redempt 2 54 6
Proceeds from sale of nuclear decommissioning foumst asset 29t 232 28€
Investment in nuclear decommissioning trust fu (315) (25%) (323
Other investment (94) (15€) (19)
Net cash from (used) for investing activit (1,069 (1,527) 33C
Financing Activities
Issuance of lor-term debt 427 1,31( 50
Redemption of lon-term deb (48¢€) (44¢€) (399
Repurchase of lor-term debt — (23¢) —
Shor-term borrowings, ne (417) (340 47
Issuance of common sto 35 — —
Repurchase of common sta — (16) (70¢)
Dividends on common stoc (348 (349 (364)
Other — (10 (6)
Net cash used for financing activiti (789) (84) (1,469
Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalen (34) (48) 13
Cash and Cash Equivalents Reclassified (to) from Asts Held for Sale — 11 (11)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Perio 86 122 147
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Perio $ 52 $ 86 $ 12t

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Non-

Retained Comprehensive Controlling
Shares Amount Earnings

Loss

Interest Total

(Dollars in millions, shares in Thousands

177,13t $3,467 $ 2,59 $ (211

$ 42 $5,891

Net change in unrealized losses on derivatives,

of tax

Net change in unrealized losses on investments, net

of tax

(14,440 (297

Contributions from noncontrolling interes — —
Stock-based compensation, distributions to

noncontrolling interests and ot
Balance, December 31, 20
Net income

534

6

971

(5
(35¢)
(411)

6

91

=

(184) 787
— (5)
— (359

— (709

6

— 91

— 1
22¢  22¢

9 __(33

163,23 3,17¢

2,79(

(119

48 5,901

Implementation of ASC 820 (SFAS No. 157), ne

tax

Implementation of ASC 715

(SFAS No. 158) measurement date provision

of tax

Dividends declared on common stc —
Repurchase and retirement of common s 479 (16)
Benefit obligations, net of te —
Foreign exchange translation, net of

Net change in unrealized losses on derivatives,

of tax

Net change in unrealized losses on investments, net

of tax

Contributions from noncontrolling interes — —
Stock-based compensation, distributions to

noncontrolling interests and ot
Balance, December 31, 20
Net income
Dividends declared on common stc
Issuance of common sto
Benefit obligations, net of te
Foreign exchange translation, net of

267 15

54¢€

4

(©)
(34€)

(22
@
6

(34)

7 552
— 4
— (9)
— (346
— (16
— (22
— 2
— 6

— (39
14 14

(26) __(11)

163,02( 3,17¢

(165)

43 6,03¢

Net change in unrealized losses on derivatives,

of tax

Net change in unrealized losses on investments, net

of tax

Contributions from noncontrolling interes — —
Stock-based compensation, distributions to

noncontrolling interests and ot
Balance, December 31, 20C

1,271 47

w

53t
— (349
— 35
— 7
— 2

— 1

— 8
4 4

(12) 35

165,400 $3,257

$3,16¢ $ (147)

$ 38 $6,31¢
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DTE ENERGY COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE |INCOME
The following table displays comprehensive income:

2009 2008 2007

(in Millions)
Net income $535 $555 ¢ 787
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of
Foreign exchange translation, net of taxes of §IL) nd 2 ) —
Benefit obligations, net of taxes of $4, $(12) &% 7 (22 6
Net unrealized gains (losses) on derivati
Gains (losses) arising during the period, net eésaof $2, $2 and $(7! 3 4 (147)
Amounts reclassified to income, net of taxes of) 31 and $12! (2) 2 232
1 6 91
Net unrealized gains (losses) on investme
Gains (losses) arising during the period, net eésaof $3, $(19) and $ 5 (34) 4
Amounts reclassified to income, net of taxes of$-and $(2) 3 — (©)]
8 (34) 1
Comprehensive incon 55 501 88t
Less: Comprehensive income (loss) attributableottcontrolling interest 3 7 (184)
Comprehensive income attributable to DTE Energy Qamy $55C $494 $1,06¢

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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